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WORLEY IS A LEADING PROVIDER OF
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES TO THE
ENERGY, RESOURCE AND COMPLEX
PROCESS INDUSTRIES. 

OFFICES41 COUNTRIES17 PROJECT SERVICES
PERSONNEL4,500
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“WE ARE PLEASED TO HAVE ACHIEVED OUR PROSPECTUS FORECAST RESULT. THE 2003 RESULT WAS
UNDERPINNED BY THE CONTINUED STRONG PERFORMANCE IN OUR ASIAN OPERATIONS AND ABOVE FORECAST
GROWTH IN OUR MINERALS & METALS GROUP. THE RESULT UNDERLINES THE BENEFITS OF WORLEY’S
INCREASING OPERATIONAL AND GEOGRAPHIC DIVERSIFICATION. WE WERE ABLE TO ACHIEVE THIS RESULT
DESPITE A SIGNIFICANT FINANCIAL IMPACT ON OUR OIL & GAS BUSINESS IN THE MIDDLE EAST IN THE SECOND
HALF OF THE YEAR FROM THE IRAQ SITUATION AND THE EFFECT OF AN APPRECIATING AUSTRALIAN DOLLAR.”

Dear Shareholder,

I am pleased to present the Worley Group 2003 annual report and to update you on the
Company’s progress since listing on the Australian Stock Exchange in November 2002.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Worley achieved record levels of revenue and profit in the year to 30 June 2003, its fourth
successive year of strong growth. Net profit increased by 46.2% to $25.9 million, comfortably
exceeding the forecast in the Company’s prospectus.

Aggregated revenue was $474.4 million, an 8.3% increase on the previous year but marginally
lower than the prospectus forecast due primarily to the effects of the Iraq war and the
appreciation in the value of the Australian dollar against the US dollar.

The financial result was underpinned by the continued strong performance of the Company’s
Asian operations and above forecast growth in the Minerals & Metals group. In addition,
Worley’s joint ventures and integrated service contracts continued a pattern of long term growth.

The strong earnings performance of the Company is complemented by a sound balance sheet
with significant cash reserves providing substantial capacity for growth.

The Company has declared a fully franked final dividend of 5 cents per share to be paid on
13 October 2003 in line with the prospectus forecast.

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENTS
Worley has capitalised on the robust foundations set in place by the Company’s initial public
offering, further extending its geographic reach through a combination of strategic acquisitions
and new office openings. The establishment in Canada of the Company’s 41st office takes to
17 the number of countries in which Worley has a geographic presence.

Worley’s joint venture with Macdonald Engineering Group in Canada exemplifies the Company’s
strategy to increase scale in key markets by forming alliances with complementary businesses.
The joint venture, which was completed after the end of the financial year, will extend the
Company’s technical capability and geographic coverage in oil and gas.

A number of new contracts were won and a number of important existing contracts were
extended during the year, demonstrating the increasing acceptance of the Company’s alliancing
and contracting model. Long term alliances and integrated services contracts now represent
approximately 40% of 2003 aggregated revenue, reflecting the significance to Worley of long
term asset management services.

CHAIRMAN’S LETTER

23%
RETURN ON EQUITY



WORLEY ANNUAL REPORT 2003 | 3

BOARD APPOINTMENTS
During the year, the distinguished public company director Mr Erich Fraunschiel joined Worley’s
Board of Directors. He became the Chairman of the Audit and Risk Committee. Mr Fraunschiel
has had an extensive career with Wesfarmers Limited spanning some 18 years and is currently a
director of a number of other substantial public companies.

I am delighted to welcome Mr Fraunschiel to the Board and look forward to his ongoing
contribution.

As the board of a newly listed Australian Company, all members work closely with management
to apply the principles of best practice corporate governance in all aspects of the Company’s
business. The Board is well-balanced and has a diverse range of experience, qualifications and
expertise. All members are committed to the spirit, as well as to the rule, of compliance with
corporate governance principles. Worley was fortunate to have an advisory board for a number
of years prior to its public listing. This has allowed time for Worley to develop its culture of
corporate governance such that we will comply with the Australian Stock Exchange’s
recommended guidelines prior to June 2004.

OUTLOOK
The outlook for the Worley Group remains strong. The Company has a robust and developing
international network of operations, and an increasingly diversified business. Our revenue profile
is lengthening with a solid increase in long term and alliance style contracts and we have a
track record of acceptable earnings growth in our core business and joint ventures.

Subject to reasonable conditions in the markets in which the Company operates, Worley expects
to deliver further increases in earnings in the 2004 financial year.

Yours sincerely

JOHN SCHUBERT
CHAIRMAN
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GROUP FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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Growth Prospectus
$m 2000 2001 2002 2003 2002 Forecast

Aggregated revenue* 214.3 313.8 437.8 474.4 8.3% 495.7

EBITDA 13.2 24.2 33.5 41.5 23.9% 38.6

EBIT 7.2 17.6 25.9 32.1 23.9% 30.9

EBIT margin 3.3% 5.6% 5.9% 6.8% 6.2%

Net profit# 17.7 25.9 46.2% 22.6

Net profit margin 4.0% 5.5% 4.6%

Return on equity 26.0% 23.0% 21.0%

Basic EPS normalised** (cents per share) 16.3 20.4 25.2% 18.1

Basic EPS (cents per share) 13.6 18.1 33.1% 15.8
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Revenue Profile (as percentage of aggregated revenue)

8.3%
GROWTH ON 2002

23.9%
GROWTH ON 2002

* Aggregated revenue as defined in the Worley Prospectus includes revenue from associates and excludes pass through procurement services for nil margin.
# Including profit on sale of Atria, $1.4 million.
** Normalised for the amortisation of intangibles.
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STRONG FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE – Net profit of $25.9 million representing an
increase of 14.4% on prospectus forecast of $22.6 million.

GROWTH OPPORTUNITIES – Further diversification in Minerals, Metals & Chemicals
and Industrial & Infrastructure; acquisition of services businesses in Canada (Calgary)
and Australia (Geelong); opening of offices in Trinidad and Oman. 

GLOBAL REACH – Operations now span 17 countries, with 41 office locations
worldwide in the Asia Pacific, Middle East and the Americas.

DIVERSIFIED CONTRACT BASE – Operating in four key sectors with an increasingly
broad client base, this geographic and client diversification significantly reduces
Worley’s reliance on individual projects and clients. No single contract contributed 
more than 9% of aggregated revenue in 2003. 

QUALITY CLIENT BASE – With a blue chip client base, Worley continued to grow 
its existing relationships in 2003. Important new relationships were formed with
national oil companies in the Middle East and with clients in the minerals, metals 
and chemicals sector.

ALLIANCE BASED CONTRACT APPROACH – Alliance and integrated services contracts
represented approximately 40% of aggregated revenue in 2003. The growth of
Minerals, Metals & Chemicals in 2003 was due in part to growing acceptance of the
alliance based contracting model.

STRONG PARTNERSHIPS – Worley has been successful in choosing partners who
complement its skill set. These partners include Transfield Services, ABB, KBR, Fluor
and Ranhill. Two new partners will feature in 2004: Macdonald (Calgary, Canada) and
Jones & Jones (Geelong, Australia). 

HOW WE DELIVERED ON PROSPECTUS FORECAST
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PERFORMANCE

THE 2003 FINANCIAL YEAR HAS DELIVERED WORLEY’S BEST EVER FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH A 
NET PROFIT OF $25.9 MILLION, 46.2% ABOVE THE PREVIOUS YEAR, AND 14.4% IN EXCESS OF THE 
PROSPECTUS FORECAST OF $22.6 MILLION.

THESE RESULTS WERE ACHIEVED ON AGGREGATED REVENUE OF $474.4 MILLION, SLIGHTLY LESS THAN 
WAS FORECAST IN THE COMPANY’S PROSPECTUS DUE LARGELY TO THE STRENGTHENING OF THE AUSTRALIAN
DOLLAR, THE IMPACT OF THE IRAQ WAR AND DELAYS IN SOME PROJECTS OUT OF OUR US OFFICES.

OUR RETURN ON EQUITY WAS OVER 20% IN THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND WE START THE NEW FINANCIAL 
YEAR IN A STRONG FINANCIAL POSITION.

When Worley listed in November 2002, the group was organised into five Customer Sector
Groups: Oil & Gas; Refining, Petrochemicals & Chemicals; Minerals & Metals; Industrial &
Infrastructure; and Developments, and my review is structured along these lines.

However, as we move into the new financial year, the structure will reduce to four groups:
Hydrocarbons, combining Oil & Gas and Refining & Petrochemicals; Minerals, Metals & Chemicals,
absorbing non oil and gas related chemicals; Industrial & Infrastructure; and Power, Water &
Developments. Previously, Power & Water formed part of the Industrial & Infrastructure group.

This realignment better reflects the changing markets in which we operate and more realistically
describes the business that Worley is becoming.

OIL & GAS
Oil & Gas remains Worley’s key Customer Sector Group delivering 67% of aggregated revenue.
The year was a patchy one for Oil & Gas. We achieved outstanding performance from our
Malaysian, Indonesian, Thai, Brunei and Saudi Arabian offices and continuing strong results
from our integrated service contracts and our joint venture for Bayu Undan. We experienced less
than expected results, largely due to project delays due to the Iraq war and other factors, from
our other Middle Eastern, Australian and American offices.

The Transfield Worley joint venture now holds integrated service contracts with Woodside, 
Shell Todd and New Zealand Refining Company, while the contract held by the Worley ABB joint
venture with ESSO BHP Billiton was extended by a further year.

A major milestone, notably reaching two million project manhours, was achieved by the Damit
Worley joint venture on the Brunei Shell Petroleum contract in 2003. The Ranhill Worley joint
venture based in Kuala Lumpur was awarded several substantial projects including the Salman
development for offshore Iran and a significant long term contract for Shell in Malaysia.

In Indonesia, Ceria Worley successfully completed a substantial FEED (Front End Engineering 
and Design) project for ConocoPhillips, marking a transition to new levels of performance and
capability for the Jakarta operation.

In China, Worley's capabilities continue to grow with work for Apache China Corporation and
Kerr McGee in Bohai Bay, and for ConocoPhillips China Inc on the upgrade and conversion of its
Ming Zhu floating production storage and offloading system. This work was executed in
Worley’s Australian and American offices.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT

IN EXCESS OF FORECAST PROSPECTUS NET PROFIT

14.4%

MINERALS
&METALS
OUTSTANDING PERFORMANCE
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The Middle East continues to expand its network and increase in importance with Saudi Arabia
proving to be an exciting market.

Worley, together with its local joint venture partner, signed a five year contract with Saudi
Aramco, the world’s largest oil and gas producer, for the Maintain Potential Program for Saudi
Aramco’s offshore assets. Importantly, this contract cements the position of the joint venture 
as a provider of world class project management and design services and further enhances its
reputation for excellence in project delivery in the region.

Worley has willingly embraced the Kingdom’s number one priority, “Saudisation” – the merging
of appropriately qualified local labour into the workforce – through a dedicated team which is
pioneering local training programs. Worley’s approach is similar to that used successfully in
Malaysia, Indonesia and Brunei.

2003 also saw the opening of a Worley office in Trinidad to service BHP Billiton's onshore
assets, and the nearing of completion of the world's biggest oil and gas project of its time, 
Bayu Undan for ConocoPhillips.

Floating production systems are a key future area of oil and gas activity and Worley has been
fortunate to gain the expertise of Robert Edwardes, formerly of ExxonMobil, to expand Worley’s
capability in this area.

Significant, too, was the launch of Worley Select, a high value group providing management
consulting services, particularly targeting project identification and selection.

REFINING, PETROCHEMICALS & CHEMICALS
The Refining, Petrochemicals & Chemicals (RPC) business grew strongly overseas, with Malaysia
and Saudi Arabia providing solid markets. While marginally falling short of forecast revenue,
RPC delivered $30.8 million to the Company’s aggregated revenue stream, an increase of
4.1% over last year.

Since listing, the RPC division has been awarded four important contracts:

• The Australian Department of Defence’s Project Services Contract for the modernisation of 
the Mulwala Munitions Facilities;

• Saudi Aramco’s FEED and detailed engineering and procurement assistance for a C3 recovery
project at Ras Tanura Refinery in Saudi Arabia. This is the most complex package of its kind
ever awarded by Saudi Aramco to an in-Kingdom contractor;

• Methanol Australia’s FEED package for the Tassie Shoal Offshore Methanol Project through
the Offshore Methanol Joint Venture; and

• The renewal of the Qenos Engineering Alliance in Victoria for a further 12 months following 
a successful five year relationship.

ACHIEVED BY DAMIT WORLEY IN BRUNEI

2MILLION
PROJECT MANHOURS
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The New Zealand, Malaysian and Saudi Arabian markets all exceeded expectations during 2003;
however, a surplus of petroleum fuel products in the Asia-Pacific region has meant thin refining
margins and low petrochemical prices for refining, petrochemicals and chemicals companies in
general, a situation anticipated to continue until a revival in the US economy occurs.

Alliances and long term contracts continue to be the most cost effective and efficient way to
service refining, petrochemicals and chemicals customers with new initiatives emerging in
small projects’ procedures and benchmarking.

MINERALS & METALS
The Minerals & Metals group delivered a strong performance in 2003, with aggregated revenue
increasing substantially to $66.8 million, well above forecasts and 130.8% above last year.

Central to this success have been the establishment of alliance relationships and successful
project execution. Key alliance developments include the consolidation of Worley’s alliance with
WMC Resources, the expansion of its Worsley alliance with BHP Billiton, and winning the Hydro
Aluminium Kurri Kurri alliance contract. The group also successfully completed the Comalco CAR
project for Bechtel.

The Minerals & Metals group is now recognised worldwide as a market leader in design and
project services for the alumina industry. Our position in the light metals sector has been further
strengthened following the purchase in July 2003 of 51% of Geelong based aluminium
specialist, Jones & Jones.

Focusing on three key industry areas (light metals, base metals and coal), and with a new
organisational structure, the Minerals & Metals group adopted a more focused approach to
Engineering Procurement Construction and Maintenance (EPCM) projects and alliances by
introducing Worley’s Capability Platform Project initiative to develop project delivery expertise,
and establishing an alliance “Mobilisation and Support” team.

INDUSTRIAL & INFRASTRUCTURE

The Industrial & Infrastructure group continued to expand in 2003 generating aggregated
revenue of $59 million, an increase of 57.5% on last year with strong growth from our joint
venture with Burns & Roe in the Australian power and water sector, and in the industrial and
infrastructure businesses in Australia and Singapore.

This segment spread into new sectors in Australia – industrial (pharmaceuticals, food &
beverage) and geotechnical (tunnelling) – and achieved success in the difficult South East Asian
market through EnergySkills, Worley’s specialist manpower outsourcing business. We also
increased our market position in the road and rail transport sector.

Underpinning this growth has been the group’s shift away from a pure focus on civil and
structural disciplines to becoming a total project management and procurement solutions
provider. This assisted in establishing new business units in Queensland and South Australia to
support the high level of organic growth, and saw major projects emerge in the Middle East.

Notably, Industrial & Infrastructure is now involved in total project delivery of industrial projects
through Transfield Worley in New Zealand and is establishing its credibility and capability in two
new growth areas (defence, and water resource identification and management) with expanding
skill sets in transport and geotechnical assessment.

Key reasons for Burns & Roe Worley’s (BRW) strong performance include the commencement of
the Esperance Energy Project, and BRW’s successful bid for the Subiaco Western Australia
Water Treatment Plant Odour Control project in joint venture with John Holland.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT

INCREASE IN REVENUE $66.8M, ON LAST YEAR

MINERALS & METALS

130%

IN REVENUE, A 57% INCREASE ON LAST YEAR

INDUSTRIAL & INFRASTRUCTURE

$59m
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2003 also saw the establishment of the Sydney Water Energy Partners program with BRW working in an
alliance arrangement with Sydney Water for energy management.

BRW’s progress in 2003 not only significantly expanded Worley’s sector coverage in revenue terms, but also
changed BRW’s capability from being predominantly linked to power to being close to 50:50 power and water.

South East Asia appears prospective with projects for Australian execution being won by BRW in both
Malaysia and Thailand.

DEVELOPMENTS
Clearly focused on opportunities in the areas of power generation and associated natural gas pipelines and
waste management, 2003 saw a significant step forward for Worley’s development business. The Esperance
Energy Project reached financial close with the development phase of the project commencing in the last
quarter of the 2003 financial year.

Treatment of municipal solid waste is targeted in 2004 utilising Worley’s licensed Conporec accelerated
composting technology, with opportunities anticipated to be driven by local councils Australia wide.

PEOPLE
Worley’s key strategic asset is its people.

The primary focus in relation to its people is to keep them safe and free from harm. Although Worley’s lost
time and recordable injury rates are low compared to its peers, further reductions are possible and 2004 will
see an increased emphasis on our objective of zero harm to personnel.

The discounted staff share scheme which was an integral part of Worley’s public listing has allowed a
number of our personnel to become shareholders, broadening our internal shareholder base significantly.

Our strong growth has been and will only be possible through our policy of promoting selected internal high
performers plus targeted recruitment. This policy has ensured that we have the appropriate management
strength and depth to continue our growth into the future.

STRATEGY
As we move into 2004, Worley is becoming an increasingly diversified business. Our revenue profile is
lengthening with a solid increase in long term and alliance style contracts, and we have a track record of
acceptable earnings growth in our core business and joint ventures.

Our focus on the future is based on making significant progress towards achieving six goals:
• Demonstrable outstanding operations and corporate performance;
• An increased focus on long term contracts, integrated service contracts and alliances;
• Demonstrable success in delivering projects – large and small;
• A comprehensive geographic presence and capability across all facets of complex process and infrastructure;
• Expanded ability to identify, integrate and grow value adding acquisitions that increase our industry and

geographical footprints; and
• A portfolio of development projects.

We are developing key performance indicators which will allow internal and external monitoring of Worley’s
achievement of these goals.

The strategic platform provided by these goals, and the increased business focus that will be achieved
through a reduced number of Customer Sector Groups will position Worley well for further growth in 2004.

JOHN GRILL
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

DEDICATED PEOPLE

41 OFFICES WORLDWIDE

4500

REACHED FINANCIAL CLOSE

ESPERANCE
ENERGY
PROJECT
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WORLEY IS ORGANISED INTO FOUR KEY SECTORS: 
HYDROCARBONS, MINERALS, METALS & CHEMICALS, INDUSTRIAL 
& INFRASTRUCTURE, AND POWER, WATER & DEVELOPMENTS.

AT THE CORE OF OUR SUCCESS IS OUR ABILITY TO DELIVER FOR
CLIENTS THROUGHOUT THE WORLD.

IN BOTH PROJECTS AND ALLIANCES WE ARE KNOWN FOR OUR USE
OF INVENTIVE APPROACHES, TECHNOLOGIES AND TEAMING TO
DELIVER SUPERIOR RESULTS. IN DOING SO WE WORK THROUGH
ALL FIVE PHASES OF AN ASSET’S LIFECYCLE.

THE WORLEY BUSINESS

PHASES OF AN ASSET'S LIFECYCLE

1 2 3 4 5
OPERATEEXECUTEDEFINESELECTASSESS
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HYDROCARBONS
Worley has an expanding international reputation as a provider of
design and project services to the oil and gas, and refining and
petrochemical industries. Key to its growth in 2003 have been
exciting developments in the Middle East and South East Asia.

POWER, WATER &
DEVELOPMENTS
With a strong tradition in developing solutions that add value 
to clients, Worley also invests in infrastructure projects where its
support assists clients to deliver their mandates. In the field of
developments, Worley is expanding its role from adviser to
investor, a logical progression for a business whose success is
based on sharing risk and reward with its clients.

MINERALS, METALS
& CHEMICALS
Providing quality design and project services to the
minerals, metals and chemicals industries, Worley
successfully integrates multi-discipline expertise with
leading technology to deliver innovative solutions.

INDUSTRIAL &
INFRASTRUCTURE
Worley has always been actively involved in the infrastructure
sector either through providing integrated infrastructure services
in the resources and energy sectors or through providing
specialist services in the markets where Worley has a proven
technological advantage.
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PROJECT | UMM SHAIF

PROJECT | UMM SHAIF

PROJECT | UMM SHAIF
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ALLIANCE/ISC | NEW ZEALAND REFINING COMPANY (NZRC)
NZRC is New Zealand’s only petrochemical refiner and produces 80% of the nation’s fuel
requirements including aviation fuels, motor spirits and diesel. Transfield Worley (New Zealand)
Limited (TWNZ) provides a full spectrum of project management services including design,
procurement activities, construction management and maintenance services to NZRC through an
integrated services contract (ISC). TWNZ uses its own project management teams and the local
infrastructure of highly qualified contractors to meet the demands of this long term contract. This
ISC demonstrates Worley’s ability to deliver total project services through all phases of an asset’s
life. The contract includes major shutdown activity and support for major projects including the
current desulphurisation and benzene removal projects to upgrade the facility to world class
standards in “clean” fuels.

HYDROCARBONS

WORLEY HAS AN EXPANDING INTERNATIONAL REPUTATION AS A PROVIDER OF DESIGN AND PROJECT
SERVICES TO THE OIL AND GAS, AND REFINING AND PETROCHEMICAL INDUSTRIES. KEY TO ITS GROWTH
IN 2003 HAVE BEEN EXCITING DEVELOPMENTS IN THE MIDDLE EAST AND SOUTH EAST ASIA.

With its head office in Australia and a global network supporting international organisations, Worley works closely with clients to 
provide a full spectrum of services to the oil and gas, and refining and petrochemical industries through either long term alliance contracts
or project delivery.

PROJECT | UMM SHAIF
With the aim to enhance oil production to 350,000 barrels per day (b/d), Worley’s Perth office
with a project team of 120 is completing a 200,000 manhour FEED study in 12 months for this
world class project which has allowed Worley to be considered one of the preferred contractors
for oil and gas work in the Middle East. Involving five new platforms, 16 new pipelines and
tie-ins to existing platforms, this project covers the full array of offshore capabilities.
Individually, two of the decks will represent the largest “float over” operation in Middle Eastern
waters and, collectively, the development represents the largest and most complex undertaken
this year anywhere in the world.
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HYDROCARBONS

ISC | ESSO BHP BILLITON
Remarkable safety. 14 years without lost time injury achieved on 28 August 2003, and
12 months without recordable onshore and offshore safety incidents achieved on 19 March and
19 June 2003 respectively… this Worley ABB joint venture integrated services contract (ISC)
with ESSO BHP Billiton for its Victorian oil and gas facilities will now extend through to
31 December 2004. Uniquely, the ISC features an ongoing Safety Incentive Scheme by which
employees earn money to donate to a charity of their choice by being allocated bonus points for
meeting certain safety targets. One of the most gratifying awards has been the donation of
$5000 to the Victorian Bushfire appeal in the wake of the devastating Bogong bushfires in 2003.

ALLIANCE | MALAYSIA
Ranhill Worley has established a number of alliances and call off contracts with each of the
major refining and petrochemical producers in Malaysia including Shell, Optimal, BASF,
Petronas, BP Chemicals and PP/MTBE. With offices in Kuala Lumpur and Kerteh, Ranhill Worley
is able to service blue chip Malaysian customers locally and sustain long term relationships for
the future maintenance and upgrading of their assets. Over the last 12 months, Ranhill Worley’s
Kerteh capability has been significantly expanded, executing key projects for existing and new
customers. Malaysia’s refining, petrochemical and chemical industries are diversified and
growing with more greenfields facilities being brought online, and older facilities requiring
maintenance and upgrading.

ALLIANCE | BP CHEMICALS (MALAYSIA) SDN BHD
A prime example of Worley’s work in Malaysia is its long standing relationship with BP
Chemicals (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd, formerly Amoco. Contracted since 1996 as the company’s 
inhouse contractor for design and project services, construction management and oncall
assignments, Ranhill Worley has completed significant EPCM work for modification and
capital projects within BP Chemicals’ PTA Unit at Kuantan in Gebeng, Malaysia, ranging from
the design and installation of a liquid catalyst to turnaround work and oxygen reactor works
for an agitator modification.
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YEARS WITHOUT
LOST TIME INJURY
ISC | ESSO BHP BILLITON14

ALLIANCE | BP CHEMICALS (MALAYSIA) SDN BHD7YEAR ONGOING CONTRACT
FOR INHOUSE ENGINEERING, DESIGN ENGINEERING,
CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT AND ONCALL ASSIGNMENTS
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NEW INDUSTRY BENCHMARKS FOR DETAIL
DESIGN PRODUCTIVITY AT LESS THAN

mhr/tonne of
topsides25

PROJECT | DONG FANG 1-1 GAS FIELD

WORLEY | CNOOC | APACHE
KERR McGEE | CONOCOPHILLIPS

WORLEY’S SCOPE
INCLUDED BASIC AND DETAILED DESIGN, AND CONSTRUCTION
MANAGEMENT OF THE FPSO CONVERSION

PROJECT | PENG LAI PHASE 1
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PROJECT | ZHAO DONG BLOCK DEVELOPMENT, BOHAI BAY
Integrally involved in the Zhao Dong Block Development in Bohai Bay, China since 1997,
Worley's work for Apache China Corporation began with an extensive development options
study to minimise capital cost of drilling and production facilities for this reservoir with a
capacity of 30,000 b/d of heavy oil, and ran through to basic and detailed design, project
management, procurement, construction management and commissioning supervision. By
forming an integrated project team with Apache and PetroChina, Worley was instrumental in the
development which included two offshore structures and two articulated shuttle barges.

PROJECT | PENG LAI PHASE 1
Worley’s involvement in Phase 1 of this project with ConocoPhillips China Inc. encompassed
design review and conversion of the Ming Zhu Floating Production Storage and Offloading System
(FPSO) to meet new operating conditions of 40,000 b/d. This included an upgrade of existing oil
processing, water treatment, water injection and control systems. Located in China’s Bohai Bay,
the project was completed in late 2002 and Worley’s scope included basic and detailed design,
and construction management of the FPSO conversion on site at Shanhaiguan shipyard in China.
Key success factors were Worley’s ability to manage teams across geographical borders and
effectively integrate with the combined ConocoPhillips/COOEC project team.

HYDROCARBONS

PROJECT | DONG FANG 1-1 GAS FIELD
Located in the South China Sea, this was the first offshore gas facility developed by Worley
client, China Offshore Oil Engineering Co. (COOEC). Completed in mid 2003, Worley reviewed
the basic design and executed the detailed design of platform topsides for a 3000 tonne
central processing gas platform and an 800 tonne wellhead platform. The project was
completed under budget in less than 11 months. Working with 75 engineering staff, including
20 COOEC secondees in Melbourne, Worley achieved exceptional design quality and set new
industry benchmarks for detailed design productivity at less than 25 man hours per tonne
(mhr/tonne) of topsides (compared with the industry benchmark of 35-40 mhr/tonne).

PROJECTS | CHINA
Worley's Houston office has been working in China since 1996 and has laid the path for the Group's expansion into China and the establishment of a
representative office in Beijing in 1998. With activity centred on the rapidly growing offshore oil and gas region of Bohai Bay, Worley has been
successful in winning work with the Bohai Bay's main operating company, the Government's Chinese National Offshore Oil Company (CNOOC). 
Foreign oil companies are also actively exploring and developing offshore oil and gas fields in Bohai Bay and Worley worked with Apache, Kerr McGee
and ConocoPhillips throughout 2003. Worley has developed excellent working relationships with Chinese companies and Government design institutes,
typical of Worley's international growth strategy of establishing strong working relationships with local organisations.



ALLIANCE | WORSLEY
Operating on a basis of mutual responsibilities, common goals and KPIs, this alliance requires
10,000 hours/month of project services to sustain this alumina plant’s capital. Work ranges from
concept through to commissioning, project closeout and review, and also delivers major projects:
a $25 million liquor burner commissioning in October 2003, detailed design for digestion odour
control and a ship loader, and a 4th expansion feasibility study. The co-location of the alliance
team is key to success.

ALLIANCE | WMC RESOURCES
Worley’s pre-eminent alliancing track record, benchmarking capability, and safety performance and
commitment have resulted in several alliances with WMC: in partnership with Maunsell subsidiary
MAMIC since 2002 servicing WMC’s Olympic Dam operation in South Australia, and its extensive
network of nickel business unit facilities in Western Australia. Together, Worley and MAMIC also
sustain capital works for WMC Fertiliser’s Phosphate Hill ore processing and ammonia production
and granulation plants, and now acts as project manager for installation of a pipe reactor.

ALLIANCE | HYDRO ALUMINIUM ALLIANCE
This alliance provides management and design services for major plant upgrades of the
Kurri Kurri aluminium smelter in which additional capital investment is expected to exceed
$100 million. The Kurri Kurri alliance is noteworthy for swift mobilisation and team integration
and a smooth interface with the client’s systems. To complement its light metals capabilities,
Worley acquired a 51% stake in Jones & Jones, a specialist design business focused on
aluminium smelting facilities.

PROJECT | COMALCO CAR PROJECT
Taking leadership roles in refinery design, information systems development, and process and
discipline modelling resources, Worley developed rigorous new processes for identifying, evaluating
and locking in project solutions to maximise return on capital for Comalco’s 1.4M tpa capacity
alumina refinery in Queensland. With a project value of $1 billion, the project involved Worley in an
integrated team with Comalco, Worley’s client Bechtel and a number of technology suppliers. 
Key to Worley’s work was the development of advanced basic design, project delivery strategy
development, equipment development and selection, and the integration of these functions.
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MINERALS, METALS & CHEMICALS
PROVIDING QUALITY DESIGN AND PROJECT SERVICES TO THE MINERALS, METALS & CHEMICALS INDUSTRIES,
WORLEY SUCCESSFULLY INTEGRATES MULTI DISCIPLINE EXPERTISE WITH LEADING TECHNOLOGY TO DELIVER
INNOVATIVE SOLUTIONS.

At the heart of this key Worley business unit are several important long term alliances: the Worsley/Worley Alliance (WWA) for BHP Billiton in
Bunbury, Western Australia; a national alliance with WMC Resources where Worley is in joint venture with Maunsell serving WMC’s fertiliser,
copper and uranium, and nickel business units in Queensland, South Australia and Western Australia; and the Hydro Aluminium alliance at
Kurri Kurri in New South Wales.



THE CO-LOCATION OF
THE ALLIANCE TEAM IS
KEY TO SUCCESS ALLIANCE | WORSLEY

$1BILLION
PROJECT | COMALCO CAR PROJECT
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GEOTECHNICAL
CONSULTANT
TO THE WA PUBLIC TRANSPORT AUTHORITY
NEW METRORAIL CITY PROJECT IN PERTH

MILLION
PROJECT VALUE
PROJECT | CHEMEQ$25



PROJECT | CHEMEQ
Valued at $25 million, Worley Perth won the design and procurement contract for Chemeq's
antimicrobial production plant facility in East Rockingham, Western Australia, a first in Australia.
Driving the engineering and authority approvals, Worley's work was multi disciplined and
encompassed the environment, dangerous goods, mechanical, structural and civil design, electrical
and instrumentation design, fire engineering advice and utilities design for the plant. Major
components included a catalytic reactor, condenser, polymerisation reactors and a thermal oxidiser
for the facility which aims for production rates of 20 tpa from the first plant and 200 tpa from the
second plant. Importantly, the design had to account for clean room environments and allow for
cleaning regimes that met the client’s pharmaceutical requirements. The project was driven by a
tight budget and aggressive schedule and Worley's professionalism proved to be highly valuable
through the application of “value adding” initiatives to solve project and construction issues.

PROJECT | NEW METRORAIL CITY PROJECT, PERTH
Worley’s Geosciences group was awarded the prestigious role of geotechnical consultant to the
WA Public Transport Authority providing geotechnical, geophysical and hydrogeological advice
for the New MetroRail City Project in Perth. This project involves the design and construction 
of rail infrastructure within the heart of Perth City. This key component of the rail network in
Perth will link the proposed South West Metropolitan Railway with the existing northern rail
lines. To date, Worley has undertaken a variety of commissions relevant to the design and
construction of tunnels, underground stations, foundations, slopes and retaining walls. Worley
involvement extends from the expression of interest and tender phases to the tender evaluation
and detailed design phases of the project.

INDUSTRIAL & INFRASTRUCTURE
WORLEY HAS ALWAYS BEEN ACTIVELY INVOLVED IN THE INFRASTRUCTURE SECTOR EITHER THROUGH
PROVIDING INTEGRATED INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES IN THE RESOURCES AND ENERGY SECTORS OR
THROUGH PROVIDING SPECIALIST SERVICES IN THE MARKETS WHERE WORLEY HAS A PROVEN
TECHNOLOGICAL ADVANTAGE.

In 2003, Worley expanded into new sectors in Australia – industrial (pharmaceuticals, food and beverage) and geotechnical (tunnelling) 
– reflecting a shift in Worley’s focus from civil and structural design disciplines to becoming a comprehensive project management and
procurement solutions provider.
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POWER, WATER
& DEVELOPMENTS

WITH A STRONG TRADITION IN DEVELOPING SOLUTIONS THAT ADD VALUE TO CLIENTS, WORLEY ALSO INVESTS
IN INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECTS WHERE ITS SUPPORT ASSISTS CLIENTS TO DELIVER THEIR MANDATES. IN THE
FIELD OF DEVELOPMENTS, WORLEY IS EXPANDING ITS ROLE FROM ADVISER TO INVESTOR, A LOGICAL
PROGRESSION FOR A BUSINESS WHOSE SUCCESS IS BASED ON SHARING RISK AND REWARD WITH ITS CLIENTS.

The power sector is a natural extension of Worley’s relationships with its clients and over 30 years, Worley has developed a comprehensive range 
of skills associated with planning and delivering infrastructure projects.

Worley’s power and water expertise for Australia and New Zealand is provided through Burns and Roe Worley, a joint venture with specialist 
power group Burns and Roe Inc and delivers high quality services to power generation, transmission and distribution, and water and wastewater
treatment clients.

ALLIANCE | SYDNEY WATER ENERGY PARTNERS
Burns and Roe Worley (BRW), in joint venture with Energetics, signed a performance based
10 year partnering relationship with Sydney Water Corporation to reduce non renewable energy
consumption and greenhouse gas emissions under its Water Plan 21. By identifying, selecting,
defining and executing new energy management and renewable energy initiatives, the
BRW/Energetics joint venture will help Sydney Water’s energy management unit achieve its
goals through behavioural change programs, engineering or consulting assignments, and
development of renewable energy generation projects. 

PROJECT | ESPERANCE ENERGY PROJECT
In February 2003, Worley reached financial close on its first infrastructure development, the
Esperance Energy Project comprising a 33 MW gas turbine power station and associated 341 km
natural gas pipeline to supply electricity to the Esperance region of Western Australia. Funding
is through a combination of equity provided by Worley, Burns and Roe Worley, and ANZ
Infrastructure Services (ANZIS), and limited recourse debt. Underpinning the project is an
18 year power purchase agreement with Western Power, the WA Government’s energy utility,
and a similar agreement with the Esperance Port Authority. Commercial operation is due in the
second quarter of calendar year 2004.
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YEAR PARTNERING
RELATIONSHIP
ALLIANCE | SYDNEY WATER CORPORATION

10

YEAR POWER
PURCHASE AGREEMENT
PROJECT | WESTERN POWER | ESPERANCE PORT AUTHORITY

18
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THE BOARD

JOHN SCHUBERT | CHAIRMAN AND
NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

John joined the Worley advisory board
as Chairman in August 2000. A
chemical engineer by training, John
commenced his career in 1969 with
ESSO in Australia. In his 24 year
relationship with ESSO, John held 
many positions in Australia and
internationally, culminating with his
appointment as Chairman and
Managing Director in Australia, a
position he held for six years. In 1993,
John was appointed Managing Director
of Pioneer International and led that
business to its merger with Hanson plc
in May 2000. He resigned as director
from Hanson plc in May 2003. John is
currently President of the Business
Council of Australia, Deputy Chairman
of Commonwealth Bank of Australia
and Chairman of G2 Therapies Limited.
John is also director of Qantas Airways
Limited, BHP Billiton Limited and 
BHP Billiton plc.

RON MCNEILLY | DEPUTY CHAIRMAN
AND NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ron is currently the Deputy Chairman of
BHP Steel and has over 30 years’
experience in the steel industry. Ron
joined BHP Billiton in 1962 and has held
positions with BHP Billiton including
Executive Director and President BHP
Minerals, Chief Operating Officer,
Executive General Manager and Chief
Executive Officer BHP Steel, General
Manager Transport, General Manager
Long Products Division and General
Manager Whyalla Works. Ron is
Chairman of the Melbourne Business
School, Chairman of Ausmelt, director
of Alumina Limited, director of GH
Michell Holdings Pty Limited and former
director of QCT Resources and
Tubemakers of Australia.

GRAHAME CAMPBELL
NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Grahame was Managing Director of
CMPS&F from 1987 to 1995, one of the
largest engineering and project
management groups in Australia.
Grahame has over 30 years’ experience
in the management of major Australian
and offshore infrastructure projects
including oil, gas, road, rail, mining and
minerals projects. Grahame is currently
a director of Iluka Resources Limited
and the Macro Engineering Council
(Sydney University). Grahame is a past
President of the Association of
Consulting Engineers in Australia and a
member of the Pacific Basin Economic
Council. Grahame was a member of the
Worley advisory board for four years.

ERICH FRAUNSCHIEL
NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Erich retired as an Executive Director
and Chief Financial Officer of
Wesfarmers Limited in July 2002. Erich
is a director of Foodland Associated
Limited, Woodside Petroleum Limited,
West Australian Newspapers Holdings
Limited, Rabobank Australia Limited,
Wesfarmers Federation Insurance
Limited and Western Australian Opera
Inc. He is a member of the Finance and
Treasury Association and a fellow of CPA
Australia and the Australian Institute of
Company Directors. Erich’s early
business career was in the petroleum
marketing and management consulting
industries. In 1981, he joined Australian
Industry Development Corporation where
he worked in project lending, investment
banking and venture capital investment.
In 1984, he joined Wesfarmers to start
the company’s projects and business
development function. In 1988, he
became General Manager of the group’s
commercial division and was appointed
Finance Director in 1992.
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JOHN GREEN
NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

John was a member of Worley’s advisory
board for nine years, including a period
as its Chairman. John is an investment
banker at Macquarie Bank where he has
been an executive director since 1993.
John’s prior professional career was in
law, including as a partner in law firms
Freehill Hollingdale & Page and Dawson
Waldron. John is director of the
Macquarie Bank Foundation and is also
director of The Centre for Independent
Studies, a not-for-profit “think tank”.
Previously, he was a member of ASX
National Listings Committee and held a
number of positions in the Securities
Institute of Australia.

JOHN GRILL
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

John joined ESSO Australia in 1968,
then moved in 1971 to be Chief
Executive of the entity that became
Wholohan Grill and Partners. This
specialised consulting practice acquired
the business of Worley Engineering Pty
Limited in Australia in 1987. John has
personal expertise in every aspect of
project delivery. He has acted for all of
Worley’s major clients and remains
closely involved at board level with two
of the Company’s major joint ventures,
Transfield Worley and Worley ABB.

DAVID HOUSEGO
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

David joined Worley in July 1999. His
finance experience covers business
development, corporate strategic
planning, investment evaluation,
investor relations and management
accounting systems development. Prior
to joining Worley, David held senior
finance roles with Coca-Cola Amatil.
Previously, David worked for a number
of firms in the United Kingdom and held
a variety of accounting positions with
AAP Reuters and IBM Australia.

SHARON SILLS | COMPANY SECRETARY
& GROUP TAX MANAGER

Sharon Sills is a member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Australia. She has over 12 years’
experience in taxation, both in the
profession and in commerce. Prior to
joining Worley, Sharon was a Taxation
Manager with Arthur Andersen and
briefly with NRMA Limited. Sharon
joined Worley in May 2000 as Group
Taxation Manager and assisted with
group restructuring pre IPO and with
the listing of the Company.
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EXECUTIVE GROUP

GRAHAM HILL | EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Graham is responsible for Worley’s
international business development and
was previously head of Worley’s
Refining, Petrochemical & Chemicals
group. Prior to joining Worley in July
2002 Graham worked with KBC
Advanced Technologies in Singapore, a
specialist consulting company in oil
refining and petrochemicals, as Vice
President of Asia Pacific. Working also
with Kvaerner Engineering &
Construction (Davy John Brown),
Graham holds a Masters Degree in
Chemical Engineering and is a Fellow of
the Institute of Chemical Engineers and
former Institute Chairman of the
Victorian Branch.

PETER MEURS | EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Peter joined Worley in 1988 and has
functioned in project management and
Company development roles including
establishing the foundations of Worley’s
process business, the establishment and
growth of alliance and integrated
services contracts in Hydrocarbons and
Minerals, Metals & Chemicals and the
development of Worley’s New Zealand
business. Peter is responsible for
Worley’s Australian locations and is the
Chief Executive Officer of Transfield
Worley. With a Bachelor Degree in
Mechanical Engineering and a Fellow of
the Institution of Engineers, Australia.
Peter is also a member of the Australian
Institute of Company Directors.

DAVID MOFFLIN | EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Heading Worley’s Industrial &
Infrastructure (I&I) group, David joined
Worley in 1988 following a successful
academic career in the US and Canada.
He has been instrumental in
establishing I&I’s operations in South
East Asia and played a leading role in
the growth strategy for the Minerals &
Metals group. David holds a Bachelor
Degree in Civil Engineering and a PhD,
is a Fellow of the Institution of
Engineers, Australia and is a Chartered
Professional Engineer in Singapore.

IAIN ROSS | EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

With responsibility for Worley’s
Hydrocarbons group, Iain began his
career in the UK North Sea working for
Conoco (UK) in 1983. He worked for
international oil and gas companies
including Mcdermott International Inc,
John Brown and Amec Engineering
prior to joining Worley in 1994 as
manager of the Brunei office. Iain has 
a Bachelor Degree in Mechanical
Engineering and a broad technical 
and geographical skill base.
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MARK SOUTHEY | EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Joining Worley 12 months ago, Mark
heads Worley's fast growing Minerals,
Metals & Chemicals group. Formerly a
Senior Vice President with ABB, Mark
brings Worley strong financial,
commercial and operational experience.
He has a successful track record in
leading and managing large industrial
and technology based global service
businesses having previously held
senior international management roles
with both ABB and Honeywell in
Europe. Mark has a MBA and a
Bachelor of Science (Engineering).

RUSSELL STALEY | EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Joining Worley in 1989, Russell has
been a key player in its strategic
growth, establishing the Perth office,
growing its South East Asian operations
and consolidating its leadership
position in oil and gas. His input has
been central to Worley’s innovations in
alliances and integrated service
contracts, strategy development and
client relationship management. He has
a Bachelor Degree in Civil Engineering
and is a member of the Institution of
Engineers, Australia and a Chartered
Professional Engineer.

DAVID STEELE | EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

As Managing Director of Burns and Roe
Worley (BRW), David heads Worley’s
Power & Water group and has over 20
years’ experience in oil and gas,
petrochemicals, minerals processing
and power generation and
transmission.  Before joining Worley in
1999, David was with Rolls-Royce
Industrial Power (Pacific) and ABB
Engineering. He has a Bachelor Degree
in Electrical Engineering and a Masters
Degree in Business. He is a member of
the Institution of Electrical Engineers
and a Chartered Professional Engineer.

ANDREW WOOD | EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Andrew has over 21 years’ experience
in the oil and gas industry and is
responsible for Worley’s international
locations. Originally based in New
Zealand, Andrew has been responsible
for Worley’s expansion into Thailand
and the Middle East. He holds a
Bachelor Degree in Engineering and
Graduate Diplomas in Financial
Management and Labour Management
Relations. He is also a Registered
Engineer with the Institution of
Engineers, Australia.
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The Board of Directors of Worley Group Limited is responsible for the
corporate governance of the Company and its strategic direction. The
Board is committed to applying the principles of best practice corporate
governance in all aspects of the Company’s business. This statement
outlines the Company’s policy in relation to corporate governance
matters during the financial year.

As the board of a newly listed Australian company, the Worley Board
works closely with management to monitor the business and affairs of
Worley on behalf of shareholders, recognising that it also has
responsibilities to Worley’s customers, employees and suppliers and to
the welfare of the communities in which Worley operates. At the same
time, the Board retains its independence and vigilance over monitoring
the performance of management in setting and achieving strategic goals.
The Board regards corporate governance as a performance enhancement
opportunity for Worley, rather than a mere compliance issue.

The Board has adopted a Corporate Governance Code which reflects its
commitment to best practice principles of corporate governance. The
Board is also aware of, and has regard to, developments in Australia
and overseas and has incorporated the recommendations of the ASX
Corporate Governance Council in its regular review of corporate
governance practices.

On matters of corporate governance, decisions are referred to the non
executive directors.

The corporate governance section of the Company’s website contains
various material relating to corporate governance, including committee
Charters, the Corporate Governance Code and other information. The
link to the corporate governance section of the Company’s website is
www.worley.com.au.

BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES
The Board is responsible, with management, for formulating strategic
direction, approving that direction and setting policy regarding the
business and affairs of Worley and its controlled entities. It acts on
behalf of and is accountable to the shareholders of Worley for all
aspects of Worley’s performance, from financial performance to ethical
performance. The Board works closely with management to set goals,
budgets, plans and policies, to identify risks and to ensure that these
risks are managed appropriately.

The Board also has responsibility for critically and objectively reviewing
management’s performance and ensuring that management’s activities
are aligned with the expectations of shareholders. The Board has a
number of mechanisms in place to aid in the achievement of these
objectives. In addition to the establishment of the Committees referred
to below, these mechanisms include the following:

(a) reviewing and approving strategic initiatives, including the strategic
plan, budgets, plans and policies which encompass Worley’s vision,
mission and strategy statements;

(b) evaluating Worley’s performance against those strategies and
business plans to monitor the performance of the Board and the
executive team and assess the suitability of Worley’s overall
strategies, business plans and resource allocation;

(c) appointing a Managing Director for the ongoing management of the
business and its strategies;

(d) monitoring financial and business results (including the audit
process) to understand the financial position of Worley;

(e) ensuring regulatory compliance and maintaining adequate risk
management processes;

(f) reporting to shareholders;
(g) approving and monitoring the progress of major capital expenditure,

capital management, acquisitions and divestitures; and
(h) implementing a culture of compliance with the highest legal and

ethical standards and business practices.

In carrying out its duties, the Board meets formally at least six times
a year, with additional meetings held as required to address specific
issues. Details of the Board and committee meetings held and
attendances at those meetings are set out in the Directors’ Report.

The Board delegates management of the Company’s resources to the
Managing Director and the executive team under his leadership, to
deliver the strategic direction and goals determined by the Board.
Any powers which have not been specifically reserved for the Board
have been delegated to the Managing Director.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD
The directors in office at the date of this statement are:

NAME POSITION

John Schubert Chairman
Ron McNeilly Deputy Chairman
Grahame Campbell Non Executive Director
Erich Fraunschiel Non Executive Director
John Green Non Executive Director
John Grill Managing Director/Chief Executive Officer
David Housego Chief Financial Officer

Profiles of these directors (including their skills, experience and
expertise relevant to their position and the term of office held by them
as at the date of this report) are included in this report on page 24.

The composition of the Board is determined in accordance with the
following principles:

• The Board shall comprise at least three members, and maintain a
majority of non executive directors;

• The positions of Chairman and Managing Director must be held by
separate persons;

• The office of Chairman is always to be filled by a non executive director;
• The Board comprises directors with an appropriate range and mix of

qualifications and expertise which enhance the Board’s performance;

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
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• The Board annually conducts a review of its own performance;
• All directors (except the Managing Director) are required to submit

themselves for re-election at regular intervals and at least every
three years;

• Directors serve a maximum of three terms unless their tenure is
extended by the Board; and

• Members of senior executive management are invited to attend
Board meetings on a regular basis, as appropriate.

The Board has referred to the definition of independence proposed by
the ASX Corporate Governance Council best practice recommendations
and determined guidelines to set materiality thresholds for the
purposes of that definition. Broadly speaking, these guidelines seek to
determine whether a director is generally free of any interest and any
business or other relationship which could, or could reasonably be
perceived to, materially interfere with the director’s ability to act in the
best interests of the Company.

Pursuant to this definition of independence, all of the non executive
directors are considered to be “independent” directors. Three of these
individuals served on Worley’s advisory board in earlier years, when the
Company was not listed. The purpose of the advisory board was to
function in a similar way to the board of a public company, providing
the unlisted group with the governance framework for rigorous review
and oversight of operations by non executives. The Company benefits
from the continuation of these individuals as non executive directors of
the listed Company.

YEAR JOINED 
NAME POSITION ADVISORY BOARD

John Schubert Chairman 2000

John Green Non Executive Director 1993

Grahame Campbell Non Executive Director 1998

In the opinion of the Board, its present composition fairly represents
the interests of all shareholders in the Company.

As a matter of principle, Board and committee members have access to
the appropriate external and professional advice needed to assist them
in fulfilling their respective roles.

BOARD REVIEW
The Board conducts a formal review of its performance, policies and
practices every 12 months. The review includes:

(a) comparing Board performance against agreed external benchmarks;
(b) examining the effectiveness and composition of the Board;
(c) reviewing of the Company’s strategic direction and objectives;
(d) assessing whether corporate governance principles are appropriate

and reflect “best practice”; and
(e) assessing whether the expectations of differing shareholder groups

have been met.

Informal reviews are conducted as necessary and any director may
suggest that the Board conduct a formal review earlier than the
12 month timeframe which generally applies.

The Board also establishes performance criteria for the Managing
Director and formally conducts a review of the Managing Director at
least annually.

BOARD COMMITTEES
To ensure the Board is well equipped to discharge its responsibilities,
it has established two standing committees, being:

(a) Audit and Risk Committee; and
(b) Nominations and Remuneration Committee.

Each Committee has a non executive director as Chairman and only 
non executive directors can be members of the Committees. Each
Committee has a Charter, which is reviewed by the Board annually.

Committee members have access to the appropriate external and
professional advice needed to assist the Committee in fulfilling its role.

The Board may establish such other committees as it determines
appropriate.

NOMINATIONS AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The Nominations and Remuneration Committee meets as often as
required, but generally every four months or coincident with every
second Board meeting.

The Nominations and Remuneration Committee reviews and makes
recommendations to the Board regarding the structure of the Board,
Board Committees and individual directors. This includes matters
relating to the appointment and remuneration of the directors,
assessing the skills required on the Board, establishing processes for
the review of the performance of the Board and for the identification of
suitable candidates for appointment to the Board.

The Committee is responsible for reviewing and recommending the
remuneration strategy for the Managing Director, the Board members
and those executives who report directly to the Managing Director. In
developing its remuneration policy, the Committee has regard to the
need to attract and retain executives and directors who will create
value for shareholders, the performance of the Company and the
executive, and the general pay environment.

The Committee also considers matters including succession and senior
executive compensation policy and the Company’s recruitment,
retention and termination policies. The Committee makes
recommendations to the Board regarding the specific remuneration of
the Managing Director and advises the Board on the Managing
Director’s performance criteria and annual performance review.
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The following non executive directors were members of the
Nominations and Remuneration Committee throughout the year:

NAME POSITION

John Schubert Chairman

John Green Non Executive Director

Grahame Campbell Non Executive Director

Members of management attend meetings at the invitation of the
Committee chairperson.

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE

The Board has established an Audit and Risk Committee, which meets
as often as required, but generally every four months or coincident with
every second Board meeting. The Audit and Risk Committee has a
formal Charter which outlines the role and function of the Committee.

The Committee’s role in relation to audit is to assist the Board in
reviewing financial reporting, the appropriateness of accounting
policies and the application of those policies, and the identification 
and management of risk and internal control systems. It reviews 
the reliability of financial information and controls, and monitors
compliance with accounting policies, financial reporting and 
disclosure practices.

It is the Board’s responsibility to ensure that Worley’s internal control
and reporting procedures are adequate, effective and ethical. The Audit
and Risk Committee assists the Board in evaluating the performance
and independence of the external auditor. It nominates the external
auditor to the Board, advises the Board on the remuneration,
appointment and removal of the external auditor and approves the
terms of the contract with the external auditor. The Audit and Risk
Committee evaluates the performance, resourcing and effectiveness of
the internal audit function. It reviews and makes recommendations on
the strategic direction, objectives and effectiveness of Worley’s
financial and operational risk management policies.

The Audit and Risk Committee consists of three non executive
directors. The Chairman is appointed by the Board at the beginning of
each calendar year and may not be the Chairman of the Board. The
Managing Director,  the Finance Director and other members of
management attend meetings of the Audit and Risk Committee at the
invitation of the Chairman. The external auditor attends meetings at
the invitation of the Committee and the Committee members meet
periodically with the external auditor without management present.

The following non executive directors were members of the Audit and
Risk Committee:

NAME POSITION

Erich Fraunschiel Chairman

Ron McNeilly Non Executive Director

Grahame Campbell Non Executive Director

Members of the Audit and Risk Committee are financially literate and the
Board is of the opinion that sufficient financial expertise and knowledge
of the industry in which the Company operates is possessed by the
members of the Committee. Details of the qualifications of the Audit
Committee members are included in this report on page 24.

It is Group policy that the partner managing the audit for the external
auditor shall not serve for more than five consecutive years.

The Board has adopted a policy in relation to the provision of non-audit
services by Worley’s external auditor which is based on the principle
that work should not be carried out by the external auditor which may
detract from the auditor’s independence and impartiality, or be
perceived as doing so.

The Committee also reviews and makes recommendations on the
strategic direction, objectives and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial and operational risk management policies. This includes
ensuring compliance with relevant laws and regulations and
periodically reviewing the effectiveness of its risk management,
internal compliance and control systems.

Worley also has in place a system of internal controls for the
identification and management of financial risk; including a system 
of internal sign-offs to ensure Worley is in compliance with its 
legal obligations.

REMUNERATION
Non executive directors are paid an annual fee within a fixed amount
approved for all non executive directors by shareholders. The total
annual amount approved for the Company is currently $600,000. This is
a maximum aggregate amount.

For the period 1 July 2002 to 30 June 2003, in aggregate the directors
received fees of $1,826,324 for Board duties.

The fees paid to directors take into account what is paid by comparable
companies, and what is necessary to attract high calibre people. In line
with general industry practice, the Board reviews its remuneration
strategies in relation to non executive directors from time to time.

Non executive directors are required to take at least 25% of their
remuneration as shares in Worley. They must hold these shares for
10 years or until they cease to be members of the Board. Non executive
directors do not participate in Worley’s incentive schemes and are not
entitled to any retirement benefits.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
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Executive directors’ remuneration is determined in accordance with
market remuneration data. Mr Grill’s and Mr Housego’s remuneration,
including eligibility for performance bonuses or performance rights
awards, is reviewed and approved by the Nominations and
Remuneration Committee.

Further details regarding the remuneration paid to directors and senior
executives of the Company and the Group are set out in the Directors’
Report at page 39.

CODE OF CONDUCT
The Board has not as yet approved an Ethical Code of Conduct to guide
directors, the Managing Director and other key executives of Worley as
to the practices necessary to ensure that directors, executives,
management and employees carry out their duties and responsibilities
to the highest ethical standards. However, the Company has a strong
internal risk management and control framework. An Ethical Code of
Conduct is being developed for adoption by the Board early next year.

Similarly, the Board has not as yet adopted a formal Board Charter as
recommended by the ASX Corporate Governance Council, however, the
Board has adopted a Corporate Governance Code, which addresses
many of the issues that would generally be addressed by a Board
Charter. Worley will be reviewing its Corporate Governance Code
in light of the ASX Corporate Governance Council’s best practice
recommendations in early 2004 and will adopt, if appropriate,
a formal Board Charter.

SECURITIES DEALING POLICY AND DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS

The Company’s Constitution does not require directors to hold shares
in Worley. However, the Board has separately determined that each 
non executive director is required to take at least 25% of their annual
remuneration as shares in Worley. Directors’ shareholdings are shown
on page 40.

The Board has adopted a Securities Dealing Policy which applies to all
directors, employees and contractors of the Worley Group. Under the
terms of that policy, directors, employees and contractors may only
deal in Worley shares during specified trading windows and are
prohibited from dealing where they are in possession of material price
sensitive information which is not generally available.

Directors and senior executive management are subject to additional
restrictions, as follows:

• They are prohibited from hedging their shareholdings;
• They must inform the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer or Chief

Financial Officer of their intention to trade their shares prior to doing so;
• They may not trade or hedge their shares prior to vesting of shares or

Performance Rights;

• Directors and senior executive management participating in the
Worley Performance Rights Plan are prohibited from hedging their
Performance Rights; and

• Any short term trading in Worley shares is prohibited.

COMMUNICATIONS TO SHAREHOLDERS
The Board is committed to Worley achieving best practice in complying
with its continuous disclosure obligations and has approved a
Continuous Disclosure Policy to ensure ongoing compliance by Worley
with its obligations under the Corporations Act and ASX Listing Rules.

The Policy applies to directors and senior management; however, it is
designed to ensure that all relevant staff members are aware of
Worley’s obligations so they can assist with reporting potentially
sensitive information to appropriate persons within the Company. This
ensures that shareholders and the market in general are kept properly
informed of matters of a material nature affecting the Company, on a
timely basis.

Worley discharges this obligation by releasing material price sensitive
information to the ASX in the form of an ASX release, or disclosure in
other documents distributed to shareholders such as the annual or 
half year report.

The Board aims to ensure that the shareholders are informed of all
material information relating to Worley by communicating to
shareholders through:

• The annual report, which is distributed to all shareholders;
• The half yearly report, which is distributed to all shareholders;
• Media releases and other investor relations publications on its

website at www.worley.com.au; and
• Periodic mail outs to all shareholders.

In addition, the Board encourages full participation of shareholders at
the Annual General Meeting to ensure a high level of accountability
and discussion of the Company’s strategy and goals. The Company
invites the external auditor to attend the Annual General Meeting and
be available to answer shareholder questions about the conduct of the
audit and the preparation and content of the auditor’s report.
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The financial report of Worley Group Limited incorporates the operating results of the consolidated entity (“Group”) for the
12 months to 30 June 2003. Comparative information is provided for the eight month period from 26 October 2001 to 30 June
2002, being the year of incorporation for Worley Group Limited (“Company”). To provide a comparison of the results of the
Group for the 12 months ended 30 June 2003, and the 12 months ended 30 June 2002, the following pro forma financial
information is provided:

CONSOLIDATED
PRO FORMA

12 MONTHS TO 12 MONTHS TO
30 JUNE 2003 30 JUNE 2002

$’000 $’000

Revenue from ordinary activities 377,743 377,224

Less: Procurement services revenue (8,251) (27,175)

Revenue from ordinary activities excluding procurement services 369,492 350,049

Add: Share of revenue from associates 104,882 87,800

Aggregated revenue* 474,374 437,849

Earnings before interest and tax 32,149 25,942

Profit before tax 32,394 25,521

Net profit 25,558 18,030

Net profit attributable to members of Worley Group Limited 25,860 17,683

Basic earnings per share (cents per share) 18.1 13.6

Diluted earnings per share (cents per share) 17.8 12.6
* Aggregated revenue as defined in the Worley Prospectus dated 18 October 2002 (“Prospectus”) includes revenue from associates excluding Worley share of

revenue from Atria Group Pty Ltd (since renamed Source Personnel Pty Ltd). Similarly, “pass through” procurement services for nil margin are also excluded from
aggregated revenue. This additional disclosure is included to enable comparison to forecast information included in the Prospectus.

PRO FORMA FINANCIAL INFORMATION
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Net profit increased 41.8% for the financial year ended 30 June 2003 to $25.6 million. The profit includes an after tax profit of
$1.4 million on the sale of the east coast business of Atria Group Pty Ltd (“Atria”). Excluding the Atria profit, the net profit was
$24.2 million which represents a 34.0% increase over the $18.0 million earned in the previous financial year.

Earnings before interest and tax (“EBIT”) increased 23.9% to $32.1 million. EBIT was negatively impacted by $0.6 million as a
result of the appreciating Australian dollar.

The tax expense for the financial year of $6.8 million represents an effective tax rate of 21.1% for the year. A $3.3 million prior
financial year research and development concession impacted the tax rate significantly.

Aggregated revenue increased 8.3% for the financial year to $474.4 million reflecting a record result for the Group. The revenue
impact of the appreciation of the AUD/USD from an expected average rate of 0.55 to an actual average of 0.586 was a negative
$7.3 million. Excluding procurement services revenue, revenue from ordinary activities grew 5.6% to $369.5 million.

AGGREGATED REVENUE EBIT EBIT MARGIN

2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 % %

Oil and Gas 318,914 341,949 36,655 40,905 11.5 12.0

Minerals and Metals 66,850 28,970 8,468 510 12.7 1.8

Industrial and Infrastructure 58,996 37,458 3,232 2,158 5.5 5.8

RPC* 30,846 29,648 2,400 422 7.8 1.4

Other 2,169 14,234 1,663 882 – –

Unallocated/Eliminations (3,401) (14,410) (20,269) (18,935) – –

474,374 437,849 32,149 25,942 6.8 5.9
* Refining, Petrochemicals and Chemicals

PRO FORMA FINANCIAL INFORMATION (continued)
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Your directors present their report on the consolidated entity consisting of Worley Group Limited and the entities it controlled at
the end of, or during the financial year ended 30 June 2003.

DIRECTORS

The following persons were directors of Worley Group Limited as at the date of this report:

John Schubert (Chairman)

Ron McNeilly (Deputy Chairman)

Grahame Campbell

Erich Fraunschiel

John Green

John Grill

David Housego

John Grill was a director during the whole of the financial year ended 30 June 2003 and up to the date of this report.
John Schubert was appointed as a director and the Chairman on 11 October 2002. Messrs Ron McNeilly, Grahame Campbell,
John Green and David Housego were appointed as directors on 11 October 2002. Erich Fraunschiel was appointed as a director
on 5 March 2003.

Messrs Peter Meurs, David Mofflin and Russell Staley were directors from the beginning of the financial year until their
resignation on 11 October 2002.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the financial year the principal activities of the consolidated entity consisted of:

a) provision of engineering design and project services to the following sectors:

• Oil and Gas

• Minerals and Metals

• Refining, Petrochemicals and Chemicals

• Industrial and Infrastructure

• Power and Water

b) provision of maintenance and reliability support services to these sectors;

c) infrastructure developments; and

d) the development and commercialisation of technological innovation in areas such as communications, energy commerce and
system integration.

DIVIDENDS – WORLEY GROUP LIMITED

Details of dividends in respect of the financial year are as follows:

12 MONTHS TO 16 MONTHS TO
30 JUNE 2003 30 JUNE 2002

$’000 $’000

2002 interim dividend of 5.63 cents per ordinary share paid 25 March 2002 – 2,000

Final ordinary dividend for the financial year ended 30 June 2002 of 
5.47 cents per ordinary share paid on 9 August 2002 2,000 –

Special dividend of 7.15 cents per ordinary share paid on 11 October 2002 10,000 –

Final ordinary dividend for the financial year ended 30 June 2003 of 
5.00 cents per ordinary share declared for payment 7,469 –

Total dividends paid and declared for payment 19,469 2,000

All dividends paid and declared are fully franked.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

A summary of the consolidated revenues and results is as follows:

CONSOLIDATED

12 MONTHS TO 8 MONTHS TO
30 JUNE 2003 30 JUNE 2002

$’000 $’000

Revenue 375,431 249,397

Operating margin 11.05% 8.14%

EBITDA 41,469 20,311

Less:

Depreciation (4,367) (2,481)

Amortisation (4,953) (2,578)

EBIT 32,149 15,252

Less:

Net Interest 245 (268)

Net profit before income tax 32,394 14,984

Less:

Income tax expense (6,836) (5,269)

Net profit after income tax 25,558 9,715

Pursuant to the restructure of the Worley Group on 25 October 2001, the prior period comparative operating results for statutory
accounting purposes are for the eight month period from 26 October 2001 to 30 June 2002. To provide a comparison of the
operating results of the Worley business for the 12 months ended 30 June 2003, and the 12 months ended 30 June 2002,
pro forma financial information is provided on page 33.

The consolidated net profit of the Group for the financial year ended 30 June 2003, after income tax expense and outside equity
interests was $25.9 million. Aggregated revenue for the period was $474.4 million, and statutory revenue was $377.7 million.

Aggregated revenue as defined in the Worley Prospectus dated 18 October 2002 (“Prospectus”) includes revenue from associates
excluding Worley share of revenue from Atria Group Pty Ltd (since renamed Source Personnel Pty Ltd). Similarly, “pass through”
procurement services for nil margin are also excluded from aggregated revenue. This additional disclosure is included to enable
comparison to forecast information included in the Prospectus.

The tax expense for the period was $6.8 million and net interest revenue was $0.2 million. The result includes a net profit after
tax of $0.4 million for the sale of the east coast business of Atria Group Pty Ltd and an associated $1.0 million reduction in
provisions relating to Atria Group Pty Ltd. The result also includes goodwill amortisation of $1.6 million and amortisation of
the Worley trade name of $1.8 million.

Net cash at 30 June 2003 was $32.8 million, an increase of $14.8 million from the 30 June 2002 cash position. Operating
cash flow of $29.9 million and net proceeds from the issue of ordinary shares of $14.2 million were used to repay borrowings
of $7.1 million and fund the acquisitions of $2.8 million.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)
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EARNINGS PER SHARE

2003 2002
CENTS CENTS

Basic earnings per share 18.1 7.2

Diluted earnings per share 17.8 6.7

To assist comparison, the basic and diluted earnings per share disclosed for the period ended 30 June 2002 have been restated
to incorporate the increased number of shares issued as a result of the share split, effective 11 October 2002. Refer to note 22
for further details.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE STATE OF AFFAIRS

Following a successful Initial Public Offering, Worley Group Limited listed on the Australian Stock Exchange on 28 November
2002. Gross proceeds from the issue contributed $16.4 million to the Group.

On 5 August 2002 Worley Pty Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Worley Group Limited, acquired the remaining 20% of issued
shares in Worley International Inc that was not already beneficially owned by Worley Pty Limited. The purchase was satisfied by
a cash consideration of $2.0 million.

MATTERS SUBSEQUENT TO THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

Effective 1 July 2003, Worley Engineering Pty Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Worley Group Limited, acquired a 51%
interest in Jones & Jones Engineering Design Pty Limited. A total cash consideration of $1.6 million has been paid to acquire
this interest.

Effective 1 August 2003, Worley Engineering Pty Limited also acquired 50% of the issued share capital of Macdonald Engineering
Group Limited, a Canadian engineering company. The company has since been renamed MEG Worley Limited. A total cash
consideration of $3.3 million has been paid to acquire this interest.

No other matter or circumstance has arisen since 30 June 2003 that has significantly affected, or may significantly affect:

a) The consolidated entity’s operations in future financial years, or

b) The results of those operations in future financial years, or

c) The consolidated entity’s state of affairs in future financial years.

LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS AND EXPECTED RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Further information on likely developments in the operations of the consolidated entity and the expected results of the operations
have not been included in this report because the directors believe it would be likely to result in unreasonable prejudice to the
consolidated entity.

ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION

Worley does not carry out environmentally sensitive activities in its own right. Worley’s principal exposure to environmental risk
lies in failing to perform services to the appropriate standard of care, resulting in environmental damage. Assessment and
management of such risks form part of Worley’s risk management system. The directors are not aware of any breaches of
environmental regulations as a result of the activities of the consolidated entity.

INFORMATION ON DIRECTORS

The names of the Directors holding office during the financial year and until the date of this report are set out on pages 24-25
together with details of Directors’ experience, qualifications, special responsibilities and organisations in which each of the
Directors has declared an interest.
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MEETINGS OF DIRECTORS

The number of meetings of directors (including meetings of committees of directors) held during the financial year and the
number of meetings attended by each director were as follows:

ADVISORY BOARD AUDIT AND RISK NOMINATIONS AND
BOARD MEETINGS MEETINGS1 COMMITTEE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

MEETINGS MEETINGS MEETINGS MEETINGS
HELD WHILE NUMBER HELD WHILE NUMBER HELD WHILE NUMBER HELD WHILE NUMBER

DIRECTOR A DIRECTOR ATTENDED A DIRECTOR ATTENDED A MEMBER ATTENDED A MEMBER ATTENDED

John Schubert 5 5 3 3 – – 3 3

Ron McNeilly 5 5 3 2 2 1 1 1

Grahame Campbell 5 5 3 2 2 2 3 3

Erich Fraunschiel 3 3 – – 2 2 – –

John Green 5 5 3 3 – – 2 2

John Grill 5 5 8 8 – – – –

David Housego 5 5 3 3 – – – –

Peter Meurs – – 5 4 – – – –

David Mofflin – – 5 5 – – – –

Russell Staley – – 5 5 – – – –

1 The Advisory Board was in place prior to the listing and its purpose was to function effectively as the Board of a listed company, reviewing performance and
strategies for future growth. Membership comprised both non-executive and executive directors of the company. As a consequence of listing, regular Board
meetings have replaced the need for a separate Advisory Board.

DIRECTORS’ AND EXECUTIVES’ EMOLUMENTS

REMUNERATION POLICY
The key driver of Worley’s remuneration policy is to attract and retain top quality directors and executives to ensure the continued
success of the Group for the benefit of all our stakeholders.

The Nominations and Remuneration Committee (“Committee”), consisting entirely of non-executive directors of Worley, advises
the Board on remuneration policies and practices. The Committee makes recommendations on these policies and practices
and conditions of employment. It also determines remuneration, based on performance of the Group, for executive directors,
non-executive directors and other executives as appropriate.

In determining policies and practices that are market competitive and will attract, motivate and retain high quality people, the
Committee regularly seeks independent expert advice.

Remuneration of directors is determined by the Board within the maximum amount approved by the shareholders from time to
time.

The Board undertakes an annual review of its own performance as well as the performance of the Board’s Committees.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Non-executive directors receive directors’ fees and, under the terms of the Non-executive Director Share Plan, are required to
contribute a minimum of 25% to a maximum of 60%, of these annual fees into shares of the Company, effective 1 January 2003.

Non-executive directors do not participate in Group incentive schemes and are not entitled to any retirement or termination
benefits, other than superannuation payments where applicable.

Non-executive directors are only eligible to participate in the Non-executive Director Share Plan. They are required to hold these
shares for 10 years or until they cease to be members of the Board.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Executive emoluments are determined by the Committee on the basis of a number of factors appropriate to the position. External
advice regarding the competitiveness of the pay structure for roles is sought and considered. The Committee will also assess
past performance of the executive, the performance of business units within his or her control and the contribution of the
executive to the overall performance of the Group.

The Board may, from time to time, grant performance rights to executives under the terms and conditions of the Worley
Performance Rights Plan rules. Performance rights may only be exercised on attainment of prescribed performance hurdles.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS OF WORLEY GROUP LIMITED
Details of the nature and amount of each element of the emolument of each director of the Company and each of the five
executive officers of the Company and the consolidated entity receiving the highest emolument for the financial year are as
follows:

ANNUAL EMOLUMENTS LONG TERM EMOLUMENTS

EXECUTIVE 
FEE/ NON-EXECUTIVE PERFORMANCE

SALARY BONUS OTHER SHARE PLAN RIGHTS2 SUPER TOTAL
$ $ $ $ $ $ $

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
John Schubert 65,481 – – 13,750 – – 79,231

Ron McNeilly 44,856 – – 9,375 – 4,037 58,268

Grahame Campbell 32,894 – – 6,875 – 4,541 44,310

John Green 23,269 – – 16,500 – 2,094 41,863

Erich Fraunschiel 17,093 – – 5,698 – – 22,791

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
John Grill 533,317 100,000 22,879 – 49,871 10,519 716,586

David Housego1 234,020 289,380 28,197 – 19,587 9,709 580,893

Russell Staley 59,973 – 35,900 – – 3,237 99,110

Peter Meurs 88,399 – – – – 3,237 91,636

David Mofflin 80,098 – 8,301 – – 3,237 91,636

Other remuneration includes salary sacrifice items such as motor vehicles, additional superannuation contributions, medical insurance and other minor items.
1 Appointed as director on 11 October 2002. The above disclosure represents emoluments for the 12 months ended 30 June 2003.
2 The Company has adopted the fair value measurement provisions of ED 108 “Share-based Payment” for all performance rights granted to directors and executives

which had not vested at 1 July 2002. The fair value of such performance rights is being amortised and disclosed as part of director and executive emoluments on
a straight line basis over the vesting period.
The fair values of performance rights have been determined using an appropriate pricing model that takes into account the vesting and performance criteria of the
performance right.
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EMOLUMENTS OF THE FIVE MOST HIGHLY PAID EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE COMPANY AND CONSOLIDATED ENTITY

ANNUAL EMOLUMENTS LONG TERM EMOLUMENTS

EXECUTIVE
PERFORMANCE

SALARY BONUS OTHER RIGHTS SUPER TOTAL
$ $ $ $ $ $

Peter Brooks1 383,632 102,302 15,345 16,762 9,378 527,419

Andrew Wood2 259,355 82,500 153,966 17,105 – 512,926

Iain Ross 376,197 70,753 – 16,529 10,519 473,998

Graham Hill 259,588 – 111,977 15,689 9,912 397,166

Russell Staley3 147,211 128,536 54,134 19,587 7,282 356,750

1 Remunerated in US$ while overseas. These amounts were converted to A$ at the weighted average exchange rate for the financial year.
2 Partially remunerated in UAE Dirham while overseas. These amounts were converted to A$ at the weighted average exchange rate for the financial year.
3 Resigned as director on 11 October 2002. Remuneration as director excluded from executive remuneration disclosure.

DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS

PARTICULARS OF DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES
Particulars of directors’ beneficial interests in shares of Worley Group Limited as at the date of this report are as follows:

ORDINARY SHARES

John Grill 29,254,090

John Schubert 1,225,853

John Green 707,976

David Housego 561,512

Grahame Campbell 362,087

Ron McNeilly 255,369

Erich Fraunschiel 28,283

SHARES UNDER OPTION

There are no unissued ordinary shares of Worley Group Limited under option as at the date of this report. No options have been
granted during or since the end of the financial year.

SHARES ISSUED ON THE EXERCISE OF OPTIONS

The following ordinary shares of Worley Group Limited were issued during the financial year ended 30 June 2003 on the exercise
of options granted under the Worley Group Employee Incentive Securities Plan. No further shares have been issued since that
date. No amounts are unpaid on any of the shares.

ISSUE PRICE NO OF SHARES
DATE OPTIONS GRANTED OF SHARES ISSUED

30 June 1999 $1.11 1,757,149

16 May 2000 $2.47 344,799

30 June 2002 $2.66 722,000

2,823,948

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)
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INSURANCE OF OFFICERS

During the financial year Worley Group Limited paid insurance premiums of $45,884 (2002 – $15,392) to insure the directors and
secretaries of the Company and its Australian based controlled entities, and the general managers of each of the divisions of the
consolidated entity.

The liabilities insured are legal costs that may be incurred in defending civil or criminal proceedings that may be brought against
the officers in their capacity as officers of entities in the consolidated entity, and any other payments arising from liabilities
incurred by the officers in connection with such proceedings, other than where such liabilities arise out of conduct involving a
wilful breach of duty by the officers or the improper use by the officers of their position or of information to gain advantage for
themselves or someone else or to cause detriment to the Company. It is not possible to apportion the premium between amounts
relating to the insurance against legal costs and those relating to other liabilities.

ROUNDING OF AMOUNTS

The Company is of a kind referred to in Class Order 98/0100 issued by the Australian Securities and Investments Commission,
relating to the “rounding off” of amounts in the directors’ report and financial statements. Amounts have been rounded off to
the nearest thousand dollars in accordance with that Class Order.

This report is made in accordance with a resolution of the directors.

John Schubert
Chairman

Sydney, 3 September 2003
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CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY

12 MONTHS TO 8 MONTHS TO 12 MONTHS TO 16 MONTHS TO
30 JUNE 2003 30 JUNE 2002 30 JUNE 2003 30 JUNE 2002

NOTES $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Revenue from ordinary activities 2 377,743 250,759 27,656 2,000

EXPENSES FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
Staff costs (243,295) (158,636) – –

Reimbursable costs (42,959) (36,706) – –

Depreciation and amortisation expense 3 (9,320) (5,059) – –

Borrowing costs 3 (362) (669) – –

Office and administration costs (32,882) (27,951) (1) –

Other expenses (22,118) (5,660) (83) –

Investment in associate written down to 
recoverable amount 28 – (2,500) – –

Share of net profits of associates accounted for 
using the equity method 28 5,587 1,406 – –

Profit from ordinary activities before income 
tax expense 32,394 14,984 27,572 2,000

Income tax expense relating to ordinary activities 4 (6,836) (5,269) (6) –

Profit from ordinary activities after income 
tax expense 25,558 9,715 27,566 2,000

Net loss/(profit) attributable to outside equity interests 302 (373) – –

Net profit attributable to members of Worley 
Group Limited 25,860 9,342 27,566 2,000

Net exchange difference on translation of financial 
reports of foreign controlled entities and associates 23 (3,662) (929) – –

Share issue costs 22 (6,925) – (6,925) –

Adjustment arising from adoption of revised 
Accounting Standard AASB 1028 
“Employee Benefits” 23 (188) – – –

Total revenues, expenses and valuation 
adjustments attributable to members and 
recognised directly in equity (10,775) (929) (6,925) –

Total changes in equity other than those resulting 
from transactions with owners as owners 15,085 8,413 20,641 2,000

Basic earnings per share (cents per share) 25 18.1 7.2

Diluted earnings per share (cents per share) 25 17.8 6.7

Franked dividends per share (cents per share) 26 12.2 11.1

The above statements of financial performance should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2003
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CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY

2003 2002 2003 2002
NOTES $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

ASSETS
Current assets

Cash assets 5 35,428 19,396 1,168 –

Receivables 6 70,148 73,535 29,203 –

Inventories 7 10,777 8,234 – –

Other financial assets 8 1,234 905 – –

Total current assets 117,587 102,070 30,371 –

Non-current assets

Investments accounted for using the equity method 9 11,713 10,312 – –

Other financial assets 10 120 208 94,660 94,660

Property, plant and equipment 11 11,186 12,306 – –

Intangible assets 12 61,705 62,950 – –

Deferred tax assets 13 8,139 8,287 – –

Other 14 211 383 – –

Total non-current assets 93,074 94,446 94,660 94,660

TOTAL ASSETS 210,661 196,516 125,031 94,660

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities

Payables 15 43,625 44,797 576 –

Interest bearing liabilities 16 3,852 9,647 – –

Tax liabilities 17 4,594 8,494 6 –

Provisions 18 28,531 19,474 7,469 –

Total current liabilities 80,602 82,412 8,051 –

Non-current liabilities

Interest bearing liabilities 19 689 815 – –

Deferred tax liabilities 20 7,782 8,747 – –

Provisions 21 2,926 2,460 – –

Total non-current liabilities 11,397 12,022 – –

TOTAL LIABILITIES 91,999 94,434 8,051 –

NET ASSETS 118,662 102,082 116,980 94,660

EQUITY
Contributed equity 22 108,883 94,660 108,883 94,660

Reserves 23 (4,591) (929) – –

Retained profits 23 13,545 7,342 8,097 –

Equity attributable to members of Worley Group Limited 117,837 101,073 116,980 94,660

Outside equity interests 24 825 1,009 – –

TOTAL EQUITY 118,662 102,082 116,980 94,660

The above statements of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2003
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CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY

12 MONTHS TO 8 MONTHS TO 12 MONTHS TO 16 MONTHS TO
30 JUNE 2003 30 JUNE 2002 30 JUNE 2003 30 JUNE 2002

NOTES $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers (inclusive of goods and 
services tax) 412,072 266,761 – –

Payments to suppliers and employees (inclusive 
of goods and services tax) (374,243) (249,145) 492 –

37,829 17,616 492 –

Dividends received 3,324 404 27,553 2,000

Interest received 607 401 103 –

Borrowing costs paid (271) (624) – –

Income taxes paid (11,553) (1,792) – –

Net cash inflow from operating activities 32 29,936 16,005 28,148 2,000

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for purchase of equity and other investments (2,831) (574) – –

Payments for property, plant and equipment (4,048) (2,984) – –

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 211 70 – –

Net cash outflow from investing activities (6,668) (3,488) – –

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 21,148 – 21,148 –

Payment of share issue costs (6,925) – (6,925) –

Repayment of bank loans (15,500) (4,690) – –

Proceeds from bank loans 8,419 5,500 – –

Lease payments (774) (296) – –

Loans made to controlled entities – – (29,203) –

Loans made to associates – (1,632) – –

Loans to/(from) associates repaid 320 (1,000) – –

Dividends paid 26 (12,044) (2,000) (12,000) (2,000)

Net cash outflow from financing activities (5,356) (4,118) (26,980) (2,000)

NET INCREASE IN CASH HELD 17,912 8,399 1,168 –

Cash at the beginning of the financial period 17,989 – – –

Cash balances in controlled entities acquired net 
of overdraft 27 (1,180) 10,469 – –

Effects of exchange rate changes on cash (1,898) (879) – –

CASH AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL PERIOD 5 32,823 17,989 1,168 –

The above statements of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2003
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1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This general purpose financial report has been prepared in accordance with Accounting Standards, other authoritative
pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board, Urgent Issues Consensus Views and the Corporations Act 2001.

The financial report has been prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention. Unless otherwise stated, the accounting
policies adopted are consistent with those of the acquired entities.

The consolidated and Company financial report for Worley Group Limited is prepared for the 12 months ended 30 June 2003.
Subsequent to the acquisition of the Worley business by Worley Group Limited on 25 October 2001, comparative information for
the consolidated entity comprises eight months of operating results. Comparative information for the parent entity is disclosed for
the 16 month financial period to 30 June 2002, which is consistent with its date of incorporation of 2 March 2001.

(A) PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION
The consolidated financial statements incorporate assets and liabilities of all entities controlled by Worley Group Limited
(“Worley” or parent entity) as at 30 June 2003 and the results of all controlled entities for the financial year then ended.
Worley Group Limited and its controlled entities together are referred to in this financial report as the consolidated entity.
The effects of all transactions between entities in the consolidated entity are eliminated in full. Outside equity interests in
the results and equity of controlled entities are shown separately in the consolidated statement of financial performance
and statement of financial position respectively.

Where control of an entity is obtained during a financial year, its results are included in the consolidated statement of
financial performance from the date on which control commences. Where control of an entity ceases during a financial year,
its results are included for that part of the year during which control existed.

(B) CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

(i) Employee benefits
The consolidated entity has applied the revised Accounting Standard AASB 1028 “Employee Benefits” from 1 July 2002.
The liability for wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave is now calculated using the remuneration rates the
consolidated entity expects to pay as of each reporting date, rather than wage and salary rates current at each reporting
date. As a result of this change in accounting policy, opening retained profits at 1 July 2002 decreased by $0.2 million.

The impact of the change in accounting policy to current financial year profits and current liabilities is not material.

(ii) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
The consolidated entity has applied Accounting Standard AASB 1044 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets” for the first time from 1 July 2002. As a result of this change in accounting policy, there was no impact on
opening retained profits as at 1 July 2002 or the current financial year’s consolidated profit.

The impact of the change in accounting policy to current financial year profits and current liabilities is not material.
Refer to note 1(p) for details of the dividend accounting policy.

(C) TAXES

(i) Income tax
Tax effect accounting procedures are followed whereby the income tax expense in the statements of financial
performance is matched with the accounting profit after allowing for permanent differences. The future tax benefit
relating to tax losses is not carried forward as an asset unless the benefit is virtually certain of realisation. Income tax
on cumulative timing differences is set aside to the deferred income tax or the future income tax benefit accounts at
rates which are expected to apply when those timing differences reverse.

(ii) Goods and services tax (“GST”)
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST except:

a) where the GST incurred on a purchase of goods and services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which
case the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item as
applicable; and

b) receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or
payables in the statements of financial position.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2003
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Cash flows are included in the statements of cash flows on a gross basis and the GST component of cash flows
arising from investing activities, which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is classified as
operating cash flows.

Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net of the amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the
taxation authority.

(D) FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

(i) Translation of foreign currency transactions
Transactions denominated in a foreign currency are converted at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.
Foreign currency receivable and payables at balance date are translated at exchange rates at balance date. Exchange
gains and losses are brought to account in determining the profit and loss for the financial year.

(ii) Specific hedges
Hedging is undertaken to avoid or minimise potential adverse financial effects of movements in foreign currency
exchange rates. Gains or costs arising upon entry into a hedging transaction intended to hedge the purchase or sale of
goods or services, together with subsequent exchange gains or losses resulting from those transactions are deferred up
to the date of the purchase or sale and included in the measurement of the purchase or sale.

If the hedged transaction is not expected to occur as originally designated, or if the hedge is no longer expected to be
effective, any previously deferred gains or losses are recognised as revenue or expense immediately.

(iii) Translation of financial reports of overseas operations
All overseas operations are considered to be self-sustaining as each is financially and operationally independent. Assets
and liabilities are translated into Australian currency at rates of exchange current at balance date, while revenues and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the financial year. Exchange differences arising on translation
are taken to the foreign currency translation reserve.

(E) ACQUISITION OF ASSETS
The purchase method of accounting is used for all acquisitions of assets regardless of whether equity instruments or other
assets are acquired. Cost is measured as the fair value of the assets given up, shares issued or liabilities undertaken at the
date of acquisition plus incidental costs directly attributable to the acquisition. Where equity instruments are issued in an
acquisition, the value of the instruments is their market price as determined by an internal valuation at the acquisition date.
Transaction costs arising on the issue of equity instruments are recognised directly in equity.

Where an entity or operation is acquired and the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired including any liability for
restructuring costs exceeds the cost of acquisition, the difference, representing a discount on acquisition, is accounted for by
reducing proportionately the fair values of the non-monetary assets acquired until the discount is eliminated. Where, after
reducing to zero the recorded amounts of the non-monetary assets acquired, a discount balance remains, it is recognised as
revenue in the statements of financial performance.

(F) REVENUE RECOGNITION
Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of returns, trade allowances, duties and taxes paid. Revenue is recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the entity and the revenue can be reliably measured.
The following specific recognition criteria must be met before revenue is recognised:

(i) Engineering design and project services
Contract revenue and expenses are recognised in accordance with the percentage of completion method unless the
outcome of the contract cannot be reliably estimated. Where it is probable that a loss will arise from a construction
contract, the excess of total costs over revenue is recognised as an expense.

Where the outcome of a contract cannot be reliably estimated, contract costs are recognised as an expense as incurred,
and where it is probable that the costs will be recovered, revenue is recognised to the extent of costs incurred.

For fixed price contracts, the stage of completion is measured by reference to labour hours incurred to date as a
percentage of estimated total labour hours for each contract.

Revenue from cost plus contracts is recognised by reference to the recoverable costs incurred during the reporting period
plus the percentage of fees earned.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2003 (continued)
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(ii) Interest
Control of a right to receive consideration for the provision of, or investment in, assets has been attained.

(iii) Dividends
Control of a right to receive consideration for the investment in assets is attained, usually evidenced by approval of the
dividend.

(G) RECEIVABLES
All trade debtors are recognised at the original amounts less a provision for any uncollectible debts. The recoverable amount
of trade debtors is reviewed on an ongoing basis.

Accrued receivables are stated at the aggregate of contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised
losses and progress billings. Contract costs include all costs directly related to specific contracts, costs that are specifically
chargeable to the customer under the terms of the contract and an allocation of overhead expenses incurred in connection
with the consolidated entity’s activities in general.

(H) INVENTORIES

(i) Consumables and stores
Consumables and stores are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value and charged to specific contracts when
used.

(ii) Work in progress
Work in progress is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises staff salary costs and direct
expenses together with an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices
less further costs expected to be incurred to completion.

(I) RECOVERABLE AMOUNT
Where the carrying amount of a non-current asset is greater than its recoverable amount, the asset is written down to its
recoverable amount. In determining the recoverable amount, the expected cash flows have been discounted to their present
value using a market determined risk adjusted discount rate.

(J) DEPRECIATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis to write off the net cost or revalued amount of each item of property, plant
and equipment (excluding land) over its expected useful life to the consolidated entity. The expected useful lives for plant
and equipment range from three to 10 years.

(K) LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS
The cost of improvements to or on leasehold properties is amortised over the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated
useful life of the improvement to the consolidated entity, whichever is the shorter.

(L) LEASES

(i) Finance leases
Where property, plant and equipment is acquired by means of finance leases, the present value of the minimum lease
payments is recognised as an asset at the beginning of the lease term and amortised on a straight line basis over the
expected useful life of the leased asset. A corresponding liability is also established and each lease payment is
allocated between the liability and finance charge.

(ii) Operating leases
The minimum lease payments of operating leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all of the risks and
benefits of ownership of the leased item, are recognised as an expense on a straight line basis.

(M) INTANGIBLES

(i) Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase consideration over the fair value of identifiable net assets acquired at
the time of acquisition of a business or shares in controlled entities. Goodwill is amortised on a straight line basis over
the period of the expected benefit, which has been assessed from the date of gaining control of the entities for
substantially all of the goodwill. The period of expected benefit is 20 years for controlled entities and 10 years
for associates.

WORLEY ANNUAL REPORT 2003 | 47



(ii) Trade name
The Worley trade name in Australia is recognised at its cost of acquisition and amortised over its expected useful life
being 20 years.

(N) TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Liabilities for trade creditors and other amounts are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in
the future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the consolidated entity.

Payables to related parties are carried at principal amount. Interest, when charged by the lender, is recognised as an expense
on an accrual basis.

(O) INTEREST BEARING LIABILITIES
Loans are carried at their principal amounts which represent the present value of future cash flows associated with servicing
the debt. Interest is accrued over the period it becomes due and is recorded as part of other creditors.

(P) DIVIDENDS PAYABLE
Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, determined or publicly recommended by the directors on or before
the end of the financial year but not distributed at balance date. Refer to note 1(b)(ii) for details of the change in accounting
policy arising from the adoption of Australian Accounting Standard AASB 1044 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets”.

(Q) JOINT VENTURES

(i) Joint venture operations
The proportionate interests in the assets, liabilities and expenses of joint venture operations have been incorporated in
the financial statements under the appropriate headings. Details of the joint ventures have been set out in note 29.

(ii) Joint venture entities
The interest in joint venture entities is carried at the lower of the equity accounted amount and the recoverable amount.
The share of profits or losses of the entities are recognised in the statements of financial performance, and the share of
movements in reserves are recognised in reserves in the statements of financial position.

Profits or losses on transactions establishing joint venture partnerships and transactions with the joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the consolidated entity’s ownership interest until such time as they are realised by the joint
venture partnerships on consumption or sale.

(R) REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE
Repairs, minor renewals and improvements, and the purchase of minor items of tools and equipment are charged to expense
as incurred. Major renewals and improvements are capitalised to the respective asset and depreciated.

(S) EMPLOYEE ENTITLEMENTS
Provision is made for employee entitlement benefits accumulated as a result of employees rendering services up to the
reporting date. These benefits include wages and salaries, annual leave, sick leave and long service leave.

Liabilities arising in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave, sick leave and any other employee entitlements expected to
be settled within 12 months of the reporting date are measured at their nominal amounts based on remuneration rates which
are expected to be paid when the liability is settled. All other employee entitlement liabilities are measured at the present
value of the estimated future cash outflow to be made in respect of services provided by the employees up to the reporting
date. In determining the present value of future cash outflows, the market yield as at the reporting date on national
government bonds, which have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related liability, is used.

Employee entitlement expenses and revenues arising in respect of wages and salaries, non-monetary benefits, leave
entitlements and other types of employee entitlements are charged against profits on a net basis in their respective
categories.

The value of the equity based compensation scheme described in note 35 is recognised as an employee benefits expense.
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(T) BORROWING COSTS
Borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs include:

• interest on bank overdrafts and short term and long term borrowings;

• amortisation of discounts or premiums relating to borrowings; and

• finance lease charges.

(U) SERVICE WARRANTIES
Provision is made for the estimated liability on all products and services still under warranty at balance date. This provision
is estimated having regard to prior service warranty experience. In calculating the liability at balance date, amounts were not
discounted to their present value as the effect of discounting was not material.

(V) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
For the purposes of the statements of cash flows, cash includes deposits at call which are readily convertible to cash on
hand and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are
carried at their principal amount.

(W) INVESTMENTS
Investments in associates are accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting.
Under this method, the consolidated entity’s share of the post acquisition profits or losses of associates is recognised in the
consolidated statements of financial performance, and its share of post acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in
consolidated reserves. The cumulative post acquisition movements are adjusted against the cost of the investment.
Associates are those entities over which the consolidated entity exercises significant influence, but not control.

All other non-current investments are carried at the lower of cost or recoverable amount.

(X) CONTRIBUTED EQUITY
Issued and paid up capital is recognised at the fair value of the consideration received by the Company. Any transaction
costs arising on the issue of ordinary shares are recognised directly in equity as a reduction of the share proceeds received.

(Y) EARNINGS PER SHARE

(i) Basic earnings per share
Earnings per share has been calculated in accordance with Accounting Standard AASB 1027 “Earnings per Share”.
Basic earnings per share is determined by dividing the operating profit after income tax attributable to members of
Worley Group Limited by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year.

(ii) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share is calculated as net profit attributable to members adjusted for:

a) costs of servicing equity (other than dividends);

b) the after tax effect of dividends and interest associated with diluted potential ordinary shares that have been
recognised as expenses; and

c) other non-discretionary changes in revenues or expenses during the period that would result from the dilution of
potential ordinary shares;

divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares and dilutive potential ordinary shares, adjusted for any
bonus element.

(Z) INSURANCE PROVISION
Provision for insurance liabilities is recognised in line with actuarial calculations of unsettled professional indemnity claims
net of insurance recoveries. The provision is based on the aggregate amount of individual claims incurred but not reported
that are lower in value than the insurance deductible of the consolidated entity. It is based on the ultimate cost of settling
claims and consideration is given to the ultimate claim size, future inflation as well as the levels of compensation awarded
through the courts.
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CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY

12 MONTHS TO 8 MONTHS TO 12 MONTHS TO 16 MONTHS TO
30 JUNE 2003 30 JUNE 2002 30 JUNE 2003 30 JUNE 2002

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

2 REVENUE

REVENUES FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Services 375,431 249,397 – –

375,431 249,397 – –

REVENUES FROM OUTSIDE THE OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Interest revenue 607 401 103 –

Dividends – – 27,553 2,000

Other 1,705 961 – –

2,312 1,362 27,656 2,000

Revenue from ordinary activities 377,743 250,759 27,656 2,000

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2003 (continued)
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CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY

12 MONTHS TO 8 MONTHS TO 12 MONTHS TO 16 MONTHS TO
30 JUNE 2003 30 JUNE 2002 30 JUNE 2003 30 JUNE 2002

NOTES $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

3 EXPENSES AND LOSSES/(GAINS)

Profit from ordinary activities before income tax expense 
includes the following specific net gains and expenses:

(A) NET GAINS
Net gain on disposal

Investments (29) – – –

(29) – – –

(B) NET EXPENSES AND LOSSES
Depreciation of plant and equipment 4,367 2,481 – –

Amortisation

Leasehold improvements 845 126 – –

Plant and equipment under finance leases 615 225 – –

Goodwill 1,623 1,060 – –

Trade name 1,750 1,167 – –

Deferred expenditure 120 – – –

Total amortisation 4,953 2,578 – –

Total depreciation and amortisation 9,320 5,059 – –

Other charges against assets

Bad and doubtful debts – trade debtors 2,552 794 – –

Bad and doubtful debts – loans to associate (500) 500 – –

Borrowing costs

Interest and finance charges paid/payable 271 624 – –

Finance charges on capitalised leases 91 45 – –

Total borrowing costs 362 669 – –
Other expenses and losses

Operating lease rentals – minimum lease payments 9,238 5,293 – –

Foreign exchange losses 442 636 – –

Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 82 217 – –

Provisions

Employee entitlements 35 2,131 1,907 – –

Insurance 18 480 1,400 – –

Support of associate 18 (1,650) 2,730 – –

Deferred revenue 18 1,093 (558) – –
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CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY

12 MONTHS TO 8 MONTHS TO 12 MONTHS TO 16 MONTHS TO
30 JUNE 2003 30 JUNE 2002 30 JUNE 2003 30 JUNE 2002

NOTES $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

4 INCOME TAX

The income tax expense for the financial period differs 
from the amount calculated on the profit. 
The differences are reconciled as follows:

Profit from ordinary activities before income tax expense 32,394 14,984 27,572 2,000

Income tax calculated at 30% 9,718 4,495 8,272 600

Tax effect of permanent differences

Rebateable dividends – – (8,266) (600)

Share of associates’ net profits (1,676) (275) – –

Amortisation of goodwill and trade name 1,039 668 – –

Legal and professional expenses not deductible 143 315 – –

Provision for support of related entity (645) 969 – –

Additional allowable tax depreciation (1,341) (750) – –

Dividend received/receivable – (37) – –

Other 477 805 – –

Income tax adjusted for permanent differences 7,715 6,190 6 –

Recognised previously unbooked tax losses – (185) – –

Research and development concession relating to 
prior year (3,319) – – –

Overprovision in previous financial period (97) (1,057) – –

International tax rate differential* 2,537 321 – –

Income tax expense 6,836 5,269 6 –

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Current tax payable 17 4,594 8,494 6 –

Provision for deferred income tax – non-current 20 7,782 8,747 – –

Future income tax benefit – non-current 13 8,139 8,287 – –

* Represents tax expense for foreign tax rate differential, international withholding taxes and foreign tax losses unable to be utilised within the consolidated entity.
The benefit for tax losses will only be obtained if:
(i) the consolidated entity derives future assessable income of a nature and of an amount sufficient to enable the benefit from the deductions for the losses to be

realised; or
(ii) the losses are transferred to an eligible entity in the consolidated entity; and
(iii) the consolidated entity continues to comply with the conditions for deductibility imposed by tax legislation; and
(iv) no changes in tax legislation adversely affect the consolidated entity in realising the benefit from the deductions for the losses.

The Group qualifies for tax benefits in relation to research and development costs incurred. As such, a total of $3.3 million is
included within the prior year adjustment, following a review of our research and development activities spanning the last three
years. The tax benefit for the current financial year has been estimated at $1.0 million.
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CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY

2003 2002 2003 2002
NOTES $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

5 CURRENT ASSETS – CASH ASSETS

Cash at bank and on hand 35,428 19,396 1,168 –

The above figures are reconciled to cash at the end 
of the financial year as shown in the statements of 
cash flows as follows:

Balances as above 35,428 19,396 1,168 –

Less: Bank overdrafts 16 (2,605) (1,407) – –

Balance per statements of cash flows 32,823 17,989 1,168 –

6 CURRENT ASSETS – RECEIVABLES

Trade debtors 56,415 72,642 – –

Less: Provision for doubtful debts (6,565) (9,465) – –

49,850 63,177 – –

Other receivables 7,137 3,433 244 –

Deferred foreign exchange gains 41 1,843 1,145 – –

Amounts owing from related parties and associates 39 11,318 5,780 28,959 –

70,148 73,535 29,203 –

7 CURRENT ASSETS – INVENTORIES

Work in progress 10,777 8,234 – –

8 CURRENT ASSETS – OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Prepayments 1,234 905 – –

9 NON-CURRENT ASSETS – INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

Shares in associates 28 11,713 10,312 – –

10 NON-CURRENT ASSETS – OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Interests in controlled entities at cost 27 – – 94,660 94,660

Other investments at cost 120 208 – –

120 208 94,660 94,660
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CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY

2003 2002 2003 2002
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

LAND AND BUILDINGS
At cost 432 498 – –

Less: Accumulated depreciation (54) – – –

378 498 – –

LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS
At cost 2,560 2,495 – –

Less: Accumulated amortisation (1,143) (126) – –

1,417 2,369 – –

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
At cost 20,411 10,669 – –

Less: Accumulated depreciation (12,354) (2,481) – –

8,057 8,188 – –

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT UNDER FINANCE LEASE
At cost 2,338 1,476 – –

Less: Accumulated amortisation (1,004) (225) – –

1,334 1,251 – –

Total property, plant and equipment 11,186 12,306 – –

RECONCILIATIONS
Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of each class of property, plant and equipment at the beginning and end of the current
financial year are set out below:

CONSOLIDATED

PLANT AND
LAND AND PLANT AND LEASEHOLD EQUIPMENT
BUILDINGS EQUIPMENT IMPROVEMENTS UNDER

AT COST AT COST AT COST FINANCE LEASE TOTAL
NOTES $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Balance at 1 July 2002 498 8,188 2,369 1,251 12,306

Additions through acquisition of entity 27 – 674 – – 674

Additions – 3,890 158 732 4,780

Disposals – (71) (261) (34) (366)

Depreciation/amortisation expense (53) (4,314) (845) (615) (5,827)

Net foreign currency exchange differences 
arising on translation of financial statements 
of self-sustaining foreign operations (67) (310) (4) – (381)

Balance at 30 June 2003 378 8,057 1,417 1,334 11,186

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2003 (continued)
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CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY

2003 2002 2003 2002
NOTES $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

12 NON-CURRENT ASSETS – INTANGIBLES

Goodwill 32,247 30,119 – –

Less: Accumulated amortisation (2,625) (1,002) – –

29,622 29,117 – –

Trade name 35,000 35,000 – –

Less: Accumulated amortisation (2,917) (1,167) – –

32,083 33,833 – –

61,705 62,950 – –

13 NON-CURRENT ASSETS – DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

Future income tax benefit 8,139 8,287 – –

14 NON-CURRENT ASSETS – OTHER

Formation costs – 247 – –

Other 211 136 – –

211 383 – –

15 CURRENT LIABILITIES – PAYABLES

Trade creditors 13,460 15,769 – –

Payables to associates 39 2,057 2,385 – –

Deferred foreign exchange gains 41 1,843 1,145 – –

Other creditors and accruals 26,265 25,498 576 –

43,625 44,797 576 –

16 CURRENT LIABILITIES – INTEREST BEARING LIABILITIES

SECURED
Bank overdrafts 2,605 1,407 – –

Bank loans 419 7,500 – –

Lease liability 33 682 539 – –

Hire purchase liability 146 42 – –

3,852 9,488 – –

UNSECURED
Loans other – 159 – –

3,852 9,647 – –

Details of the security relating to each of the secured liabilities are set out in note 30.

17 CURRENT LIABILITIES – TAX LIABILITIES

Income tax payable 4,594 8,494 6 –
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CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY

2003 2002 2003 2002
NOTES $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

18 CURRENT LIABILITIES – PROVISIONS

Employee entitlements 35 9,449 7,784 – –

Provision for deferred revenue 18(a) 5,173 4,080 – –

Provision for insurance 18(b) 2,880 2,400 – –

Provision for support of associate 18(c) 3,560 5,210 – –

Provision for dividends payable 7,469 – 7,469 –

28,531 19,474 7,469 –

(A) PROVISION FOR DEFERRED REVENUE
Worley at times receives payment for services prior to revenue being recognised in the financial statements. Revenue is
classified as deferred due to the criteria required for its recognition not being met as at the reporting date, in line with the
accounting policy noted at 1(f).

(B) PROVISION FOR INSURANCE
Refer to note 1(z).

(C) PROVISION FOR SUPPORT OF ASSOCIATE
When associated entities require support from the parent entity due to losses incurred or support given for the associates’ net
liabilities, a provision is created to reflect the extent of support given.

MOVEMENTS IN PROVISIONS
DEFERRED SUPPORT OF
REVENUE INSURANCE ASSOCIATE DIVIDENDS TOTAL

CONSOLIDATED – 2003 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Carrying amount at 1 July 2002 4,080 2,400 5,210 – 11,690

Provision 1,500 480 – 7,469 9,449

Amounts utilised during the financial year (407) – (650) – (1,057)

Reversal of unused provision – – (1,000) – (1,000)

Carrying amount at 30 June 2003 5,173 2,880 3,560 7,469 19,082

DIVIDENDS
PARENT ENTITY – 2003 $’000

Carrying amount at 1 July 2002 –

Provision 7,469

Carrying amount at 30 June 2003 7,469

CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY

2003 2002 2003 2002
NOTES $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

19 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES – INTEREST BEARING LIABILITIES

UNSECURED
Lease liability 33 689 783 – –

Hire purchase liability – 32 – –

689 815 – –

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2003 (continued)
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CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY

2003 2002 2003 2002
NOTES $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

20 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES – DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

Deferred income tax 7,782 8,747 – –

21 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES – PROVISIONS

Employee entitlements 35 2,926 2,460 – –

22 CONTRIBUTED EQUITY

(A) SHARE CAPITAL
Ordinary shares fully paid 108,883 94,660 108,883 94,660

2003 2002

NUMBER OF NUMBER OF
SHARES $’000 SHARES $’000

(B) MOVEMENTS IN ORDINARY SHARES
Balance at the beginning of the financial period 35,522,122 94,660 12 *

Issued during the financial period

– acquisition of controlled entities – – 35,522,110 94,660

– exercise of options 2,823,948 4,728 – –

– share split prior to listing 101,510,641 – – –

– public equity raising1 9,500,000 16,420 – –

less transaction costs – (6,925) – –

Balance at the end of the financial period 149,356,711 108,883 35,522,122 94,660

* $12.
1 On 28 November 2002, Worley Group Limited listed on the Australian Stock Exchange following a successful Initial Public Offering. A total of 9,500,000 ordinary

shares were issued for a gross consideration of $16.4 million.

(C) TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF CONTRIBUTED EQUITY

Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares have the right to receive dividends as declared and, in the event of the winding up of the Company, to participate
in the proceeds from the sale of all surplus assets in proportion to the number of and amounts paid up on shares held. Ordinary
shares entitle their holder to one vote, either in person or by proxy, at a meeting of the Company.

(D) SHARE OPTIONS

Options over ordinary shares
There are no unissued ordinary shares of Worley Group Limited under option as at the date of this report (2002 – 2,823,948).
No options have been granted during or since the end of the financial year.
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CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY

2003 2002 2003 2002
NOTES $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

23 RESERVES AND RETAINED PROFITS

Foreign currency translation reserve (4,591) (929) – –

Retained profits 13,545 7,342 8,097 –

8,954 6,413 8,097 –

(I) FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION RESERVE
The foreign currency translation reserve is used to record exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of self-sustaining foreign operations.

MOVEMENTS
Foreign currency translation reserve

Balance at the beginning of the financial period (929) – – –

Loss on translation of foreign controlled entities 
and associates (3,662) (929) – –

Balance at the end of the financial period (4,591) (929) – –

(II) RETAINED PROFITS
Balance at the beginning of financial period 7,342 – – –

Net profit attributable to members of Worley 
Group Limited 25,860 9,342 27,566 2,000

Adjustment arising from adoption of revised 
Accounting Standard AASB 1028 “Employee Benefits” (188) – – –

Dividends provided for or paid 26 (19,469) (2,000) (19,469) (2,000)

Balance at the end of the financial period 13,545 7,342 8,097 –

24 OUTSIDE EQUITY INTERESTS IN CONTROLLED ENTITIES

OUTSIDE EQUITY INTERESTS IN CONTROLLED ENTITIES COMPRISE
Interest in:

Contributed equity 492 62 – –

Retained profits 288 1,103 – –

Reserves 45 (156) – –

825 1,009 – –

CONSOLIDATED CONSOLIDATED
12 MONTHS TO 8 MONTHS TO

30 JUNE 2003 30 JUNE 2002

25 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share (cents) 18.1 7.2

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used as the 
denominator in calculating basic earnings per share 143,194,711 129,557,141

Diluted earnings per share (cents) 17.8 6.7

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used as the 
denominator in calculating diluted earnings per share 145,426,573 139,856,710

To assist comparison, the basic and diluted earnings per share disclosed for the period ended 30 June 2002 have been restated
to incorporate the increased number of shares issued as a result of the share split, effective 11 October 2002. Refer to note 22
for further details.
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CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY

12 MONTHS TO 8 MONTHS TO 12 MONTHS TO 16 MONTHS TO
30 JUNE 2003 30 JUNE 2002 30 JUNE 2003 30 JUNE 2002

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

26 DIVIDENDS

(A) ORDINARY SHARES
2002 interim dividend of 5.63 cents per ordinary share 
paid 25 March 2002 – 2,000 – 2,000

Final ordinary dividend for the financial period ended 
30 June 2002 of 5.47 cents per ordinary share paid on 
9 August 2002 2,000 – 2,000 –

Special dividend of 7.15 cents per ordinary share paid 
on 11 October 2002 10,000 – 10,000 –

Final ordinary dividend for the financial year ended 
30 June 2003 of 5.00 cents per ordinary share 
declared for payment 7,469 – 7,469 –

Total dividends paid and declared for payment 19,469 2,000 19,469 2,000

(B) FRANKING CREDIT BALANCE
Franking credits available for subsequent financial years 
based on a tax rate of 30% 11,499 13,980 6,667 –

The above amounts represent the balance of the franking account at the end of the financial period, adjusted for:

a) franking credits that will arise from the payment of the current tax liability;

b) franking debits that will arise from the payment of dividends recognised as a liability at the reporting date;

c) franking credits that will arise from the receipt of dividends recognised as receivables at the reporting date; and

d) franking credits that may be prevented from being distributed in subsequent financial years.

The consolidated amounts include franking credits that would be available to the parent entity if distributable profits of
controlled entities were paid as dividends.

As of 1 July 2002, the new imputation system requires a company’s franking credits to be expressed on a tax paid basis.
The franking account surplus existing at 30 June 2002 has been reinstated to a tax paid amount by multiplying the Class C
franking surplus by 30/70.

27 INVESTMENTS IN CONTROLLED ENTITIES

(A) WORLEY GROUP LIMITED ACCOUNTS INCLUDE A CONSOLIDATION OF THE FOLLOWING ENTITIES:

BENEFICIAL INTEREST HELD COST OF PARENT 
BY CONSOLIDATED ENTITY ENTITY’S INVESTMENT

FORMATION/PLACE OF 2003 2002 2003 2002
ENTITY NOTES INCORPORATION % % $’000 $’000

Worley Limited Trust Australia 100 100 94,660 94,660

Worley Pty Limited (1) Australia 100 100 – –

Worley Fleet Analysis Pty Limited (d) Australia – 51 – –

Worley International Inc USA 100 80 – –

CTR Solutions Pty Limited Australia 100 100 – –

Worley No 2 Pty Limited (1) Australia 100 100 – –

Worley Engineering Pty Limited (1) Australia 100 100 – –

Worley Developments Pty Limited Australia 100 100 * *
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27 INVESTMENTS IN CONTROLLED ENTITIES (continued)

BENEFICIAL INTEREST HELD COST OF PARENT 
BY CONSOLIDATED ENTITY ENTITY’S INVESTMENT

FORMATION/PLACE OF 2003 2002 2003 2002
ENTITY NOTES INCORPORATION % % $’000 $’000

Worley Financial Services Pty Limited (1) Australia 100 100 * *

Fraser Worley Pty Limited Australia 100 100 – –

Fraser Worley (M) Sdn Bhd Malaysia 100 100 – –

Worley Select Sdn Bhd (a) Malaysia 100 100 – –

Popran Limited (e) Hong Kong 100 100 – –

Worley Limited Hong Kong 100 100 – –

Worley Sdn Bhd (b) Malaysia 100 100 – –

PT Ceria Worley Indonesia 87.5 87.5 – –

Worley Pte Limited Singapore 100 100 – –

Cadskills Pte Limited Singapore 100 100 – –

EnergySkills (Thailand) Limited Thailand 100 – – –

Sinn Phan Thavee Co Limited Thailand 100 – – –

Worley International Limited Thailand 100 100 – –

Worley Energy Commerce Pty Limited (d) Australia – 51 – –

New Zealand Worley Limited (c) New Zealand – 100 – –

Australian Biodiesel Pty Limited Australia 51 51 – –

Worley Trinidad Limited Trinidad 100 – – –

Worley Qatar W.L.L. (f) Qatar 80 40 – –

Pars Worley Qeshm Limited Iran 60 – – –

Worley & Partners Limited Oman 60 – – –

Worley Arabia Limited (f) Abu Dhabi 100 50 – –

Worley Engineering (India) Pvt Limited India 100 – – –

Worley Safety & Risk Management Pty Limited (g) Australia 100 100 – –

Worley Infrastructure Pty Limited (g) Australia 100 100 – –

Worley Chemicals & Minerals Pty Limited (g) Australia 100 100 – –

Worley Technologies Pty Limited Australia 100 100 – –

* Investment less than $500
(a) Previously named WGP Engineering (M) Sdn Bhd
(b) Previously named Worley Overseas Sdn Bhd
(c) Company liquidated voluntarily during the financial year
(d) Interest in entity disposed of during the financial year
(e) Company in process of deregistration as at 30 June 2003
(f) Equity accounted to 30 September 2002 after which entities became controlled entities through increased ownership interest
(g) Dormant company
(1) Entities subject to class order relief

Pursuant to Class Order 98/1418, relief has been granted to Worley Pty Limited, Worley No 2 Pty Limited, Worley Engineering Pty Limited and Worley Financial
Services Pty Limited from the Corporations Act 2001 requirements for preparation, audit and lodgement of their financial reports.
As a condition of the Class Order, Worley Group Limited together with the parties noted entered into a Deed of Cross Guarantee on 26 May 2003, consequently
there is no comparative disclosure noted below. The effect of the deed is that Worley Group Limited has guaranteed to pay any deficiency in the event of winding
up of any controlled entity. The controlled entities have also given a similar guarantee in the event that Worley Group Limited is wound up.
The consolidated statement of financial performance and statement of financial position of the entities which are parties to the Deed of Cross Guarantee and the
Worley Limited Trust (the “Closed Group”) are as follows:
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CLOSED GROUP

2003
$’000

(I) CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Profit from ordinary activities before income tax expense 32,858
Income tax expense relating to ordinary activities (7,048)

Profit from ordinary activities after income tax 25,810
Net profit attributable to outside equity interest 302

Net profit attributable to members of Worley Group Limited 26,112
Retained profits at 1 July 2002 7,223
Dividends provided for or paid (19,469)

Retained profits at 30 June 2003 13,866

(II) CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ASSETS

Current assets
Cash assets 35,428
Receivables 67,228
Inventories 10,777
Other financial assets 1,234

Total current assets 114,667

Non-current assets
Investments accounted for using the equity method 11,713
Other financial assets 120
Property, plant and equipment 11,186
Intangible assets 61,474
Deferred tax assets 7,426
Other 211

Total non-current assets 92,130

TOTAL ASSETS 206,797

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities
Payables 42,291
Interest bearing liabilities 3,852
Tax liabilities 4,118
Provisions 26,156

Total current liabilities 76,417

Non-current liabilities
Interest bearing liabilities 689
Deferred tax liabilities 7,782
Provisions 2,926

Total non-current liabilities 11,397

TOTAL LIABILITIES 87,814

NET ASSETS 118,983

EQUITY
Contributed equity 108,883
Reserves (4,591)
Retained profits 13,866

Equity attributable to members of Worley Group Limited 118,158
Outside equity interests 825

TOTAL EQUITY 118,983
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27 INVESTMENTS IN CONTROLLED ENTITIES (continued)

(B) ACQUISITION OF CONTROLLED ENTITIES
On 30 September 2002, Worley Engineering Pty Limited acquired the remaining 50% of the Abu Dhabi operation of Worley
Arabia Limited, and increased its holding in Worley Qatar W.L.L. from 40% to 80%. Control in these two entities was acquired
in a single transaction, and excludes future income related to certain projects currently in progress.

On 1 December 2002, Worley Engineering Pty Limited acquired 60% of Worley & Partners Limited (Oman).

The fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is as follows:

TOTAL
$’000

ASSETS
Cash assets 698

Receivables 7,263

Inventories 2,053

Investments accounted for using the equity method 606

Other financial assets 156

Property, plant and equipment 674

Total assets 11,450

LIABILITIES
Interest bearing liabilities 1,878

Payables 6,482

Loans to related parties 2,104

Provisions 165

Total liabilities 10,629

Net assets 821

Less:

Outside equity interests (641)

Goodwill arising on acquisition 606

Cash consideration 786
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28 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

(A) DETAILS OF INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES ARE AS FOLLOWS:

OWNERSHIP INTEREST CARRYING VALUE
CONSOLIDATED CONSOLIDATED

2003 2002 2003 2002
ENTITY PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY % % $’000 $’000

Burns & Roe Worley Pty Limited Power and Water 50 50 2,731 3,333

BRW Power Generation (Esperance) Pty Limited Power 50 – – –

Esperance Power Station Pty Limited Power 31.25 – – –

Esperance Pipeline Company Pty Limited Power 31.25 – – –

Worley ABB Procurement Pty Limited Procurement 50 – – –

I&E Systems Pty Limited Technology 50 50 468 –

Transfield Worley Limited1 Oil and Gas 50 50 1,295 618

Petrocon Arabia Co Limited2 (a) 50 50 3,966 3,495

Worley Qatar W.L.L.3 Oil and Gas 80 40 – 718

Source Personnel Pty Limited4 Personnel 40 40 – –

Protek Engineers Sdn Bhd Oil and Gas 49 49 208 217

Ranhill Worley Sdn Bhd Oil and Gas 49 49 1,498 126

Perunding Ranhill Worley Sdn Bhd Oil and Gas 50 50 838 606

Ranhill Worley Engineering Sdn Bhd (a) 40 40 140 574

Damit Worley Engineering Sdn Bhd Oil and Gas 50 50 569 625

Transfield Worley Asia (Holdings) Pty Limited Holding Company 50 – – –

Transfield Worley (Vietnam) Pty Limited Non-operating 50 – – –

11,713 10,312

(a) Oil and Gas, Refining and Petrochemicals
1 Balance date is 31 March
2 Balance date is 31 December
3 Increased shareholding during financial year and subsequently accounted for as a controlled entity, refer note 27
4 Previously named Atria Group Pty Limited

(B) CARRYING AMOUNT OF INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

CONSOLIDATED

2003 2002
$’000 $’000

Carrying amount at the beginning of the financial period 10,312 –

Investments in associates acquired on acquisition of 
controlled entity – 11,552

Addition of new investments 6 459

Change in accounting from associates to controlled 
entities during financial period 606 –

10,924 12,011

Share of net profits attributable to associates 5,795 1,601

Less dividends received (3,324) (404)

Amortisation of goodwill (208) (195)

Write down of investment in associate to recoverable amount – (2,500)

Movement in foreign currency translation reserve of associate (1,474) (201)

Carrying amount at the end of the financial period 11,713 10,312
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28 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

(C) RESULTS ATTRIBUTABLE TO ASSOCIATES

CONSOLIDATED

2003 2002
$’000 $’000

Operating profits before income tax expense 6,617 1,869

Income tax expense (1,030) (463)

Operating profits after income tax expense 5,587 1,406

(D) RESERVES ATTRIBUTABLE TO ASSOCIATES
Foreign currency translation reserve

Balance at the beginning of the financial period 54 –

Effect of increase in foreign currency translation reserve 
during the financial period (1,474) 54

Balance at the end of the financial period (1,420) 54

(E) SHARE OF ASSOCIATES’ CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Performance related guarantees issued – 78

– 78

(F) SHARE OF ASSOCIATES’ EXPENDITURE COMMITMENTS
Operating lease commitments 840 2,279

Finance lease commitments 28 29

Capital expenditure commitments* 8,513 –

9,381 2,308

* Relates to expenditure commitments for the Esperance Power project.

(G) SUMMARY OF THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF ASSOCIATES
The consolidated entity’s share of aggregate assets and 
liabilities of associates are

Current assets 31,998 34,701

Non-current assets 3,839 3,752

Current liabilities (24,623) (26,831)

Non-current liabilities (644) (2,350)

Net assets 10,570 9,272

Unamortised goodwill at the end of the financial period 1,143 1,040

Carrying amount at the end of the financial period 11,713 10,312
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29 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

Controlled entities have entered into the following joint venture operations:

OWNERSHIP INTEREST
CONSOLIDATED

2003 2002
JOINT VENTURE ENTITY PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY % %

Transfield Worley Joint Venture Integrated engineering and construction services 50 50

Worley ABB Joint Venture1 Integrated engineering and construction services 50 50

TIGA Joint Venture Design of Bayu-Undan condensate field 45 45

VRJ Worley Joint Venture Safety and risk management 50 50

Worley Mamic Joint Venture Project services 50 50

MG Joint Venture Project services 50 50

APE JV Project services 50 –

Worley Maunsell JV Project services 50 –

1 Balance date is 31 December

The consolidated entity’s interests in the assets employed in the joint ventures are included in the consolidated statements of
financial position under the following classifications:

CONSOLIDATED

2003 2002
$’000 $’000

ASSETS

Current assets
Cash assets 14,455 10,309

Receivables 5,483 14,484

Other financial assets 4,908 718

Total current assets 24,846 25,511

Non-current assets
Plant and equipment 1,308 1,994

Other non-current assets 135 94

Total non-current assets 1,443 2,088

TOTAL ASSETS 26,289 27,599

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities
Payables 14,847 22,277

Provisions 7,733 4,369

Other current liabilities – 430

Total current liabilities 22,580 27,076

Non-current liabilities
Other non-current liabilities 631 523

Total non-current liabilities 631 523

TOTAL LIABILITIES 23,211 27,599

NET ASSETS 3,078 –
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CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY

2003 2002 2003 2002
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

30 FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS

The consolidated entity had unrestricted access at balance date to the following lines of credit:

SECURED FACILITIES
Total facilities available

Loan facilities 28,190 27,630 27,000 27,000

Overdraft facilities 14,080 9,250 5,000 5,000

Bank guarantees and letters of credit 32,720 25,690 24,000 24,000

74,990 62,570 56,000 56,000

Facilities utilised at balance date

Loan facilities 530 7,500 – –

Overdraft facilities 1,750 – – –

Bank guarantees and letters of credit 20,790 10,350 17,710 –

23,070 17,850 17,710 –

Facilities not utilised at balance date

Loan facilities 27,660 20,130 27,000 27,000

Overdraft facilities 12,330 9,250 5,000 5,000

Bank guarantees and letters of credit 11,930 15,340 6,290 24,000

51,920 44,720 38,290 56,000

UNSECURED FACILITIES
Total facilities available

Overdraft facilities 250 1,000 – –

Bank guarantees and letters of credit 12,500 10,000 – –

12,750 11,000 – –

Facilities utilised at balance date

Bank guarantees and letters of credit 3,570 100 – –

3,570 100 – –

Facilities not utilised at balance date

Overdraft facilities 250 1,000 – –

Bank guarantees and letters of credit 8,930 9,900 – –

9,180 10,900 – –

SECURED FACILITIES
The secured bank loan, overdraft, bank guarantee and line of credit facilities of the consolidated entity and parent entity are
secured by fixed and floating charges over the assets of the entities Worley Group Limited, Worley Pty Limited, Worley No 2
Pty Limited, Worley Engineering Pty Limited, Worley Engineering Securities Pty Limited and Worley Financial Services Pty Limited.
The facilities are subject to an annual review.
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CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY

12 MONTHS TO 8 MONTHS TO 12 MONTHS TO 16 MONTHS TO
30 JUNE 2003 30 JUNE 2002 30 JUNE 2003 30 JUNE 2002

NOTES $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

31 NON-CASH FINANCING AND INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of plant and equipment by means of 
finance leases 732 578 – –

Acquisition of controlled entity 27 – – – 94,660

732 578 – 94,660

32 NOTES TO THE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Reconciliation of operating profit after income tax to 
net cash flow from operating activities:

Net profit after income tax expense 25,558 9,715 27,566 2,000

NON-CASH ITEMS
Depreciation of non-current assets 4,367 2,481 – –

Amortisation of non-current assets 4,953 2,578 – –

Investment in associate written down to 
recoverable amount – 2,500 – –

Provision for support of related entity (1,650) 2,730 – –

Dividends received from associates 3,324 404 – –

Share of associates’ net profits (5,587) (1,406) – –

Net gain on disposal of investments (29) – – –

Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 82 217 – –

Finance charges on capitalised leases 91 45 – –

Cash flow adjusted for non-cash items 31,109 19,264 27,566 2,000

CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ADJUSTED FOR EFFECTS OF
PURCHASE OF CONTROLLED ENTITIES DURING THE FINANCIAL PERIOD
Increase in prepayments (173) (144) – –

Decrease/(increase) in future income tax benefit 148 (4,079) – –

(Increase)/decrease in inventories (492) 2,780 – –

Decrease/(increase) in receivables 7,166 (4,048) – –

(Decrease)/increase in trade creditors (6,555) (7,232) 576 –

(Decrease)/increase in provision for income tax (3,899) 7,552 6 –

(Decrease)/increase in provision for deferred income tax (965) 3 – –

Increase in other provisions 3,597 1,909 – –

Net cash inflow from operating activities 29,936 16,005 28,148 2,000
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CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY

2003 2002 2003 2002
NOTES $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

33 COMMITMENTS FOR EXPENDITURE

(A) OPERATING LEASES
Commitments for minimum lease payments in 
relation to non-cancellable operating leases are 
payable as follows:

Within one year 3,913 6,799 – –

Later than one year and not later than five years 4,803 13,111 – –

Later than five years 1,430 143 – –

Commitments not recognised in the financial 
statements 10,146 20,053 – –

(B) FINANCE LEASES
Commitments in relation to finance leases are 
payable as follows:

Within one year 712 581 – –

Later than one year and not later than five years 749 828 – –

Minimum lease payments 1,461 1,409 – –

Less:

Future finance charges (90) (87) – –

Total lease liabilities 1,371 1,322 – –

Representing lease liabilities:

Current 16 682 539 – –

Non-current 19 689 783 – –

Total lease liabilities 1,371 1,322 – –

(C) CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND OTHER COMMITMENTS
Other commitments in relation to capital expenditure 
and purchase commitments entered into:

Within one year – 798 – –

Later than one year and not later than five years – 397 – –

Later than five years – 338 – –

Commitments not recognised in the financial statements – 1,533 – –
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CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY

2003 2002 2003 2002
NOTES $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

34 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

GUARANTEES
The consolidated entity is, in the normal course
of business, required to provide guarantees and
letters of credit on behalf of controlled entities,
associates and related parties in respect of their
contractual performance related obligations.
These guarantees and indemnities only give rise
to a liability where the entity concerned fails to
perform its contractual obligations.

Bank guarantees outstanding at balance date in 
respect of financing facilities 3,196 3,451 – –

Bank guarantees outstanding at balance date in 
respect of contractual performance 14,399 4,398 – –

17,595 7,849 – –

The consolidated entity is subject to various actual and pending claims arising in the normal course of business. The directors are
of the view that the consolidated entity is adequately provided in respect of these claims.

35 EMPLOYEE ENTITLEMENTS AND SUPERANNUATION COMMITMENTS

EMPLOYEE ENTITLEMENTS
The aggregate employee entitlements liability, 
including on-costs is comprised of:

Provisions (current) 18 9,449 7,784 – –

Provisions (non-current) 21 2,926 2,460 – –

12,375 10,244 – –

EMPLOYEE NUMBERS
Number of employees as at 30 June 2003 2,471 2,377 – –

EXECUTIVE PERFORMANCE RIGHTS PLAN
As a result of listing on the Australian Stock Exchange, the employee incentive structure at Worley has changed, with the
creation of the Executive Performance Rights Plan. Performance rights over the ordinary shares of Worley Group Limited are
granted to executive directors and other executives of the consolidated entity for nil consideration in accordance with
performance guidelines approved by the Board.

SUPERANNUATION COMMITMENTS
The consolidated entity does not operate a superannuation fund. The consolidated entity contributes to various superannuation
funds at the statutory superannuation guarantee rate.
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35 EMPLOYEE ENTITLEMENTS AND SUPERANNUATION COMMITMENTS (continued)

(A) OPTIONS
Information with respect to the number of options granted under the employee share incentive scheme is as follows:

2003 2002

WEIGHTED WEIGHTED
AVERAGE AVERAGE

NUMBER OF EXERCISE NUMBER OF EXERCISE
NOTES OPTIONS PRICE OPTIONS PRICE

Balance at beginning of financial period (i) 2,823,948 $1.67 2,101,948 $1.34

– granted – – 722,000 $2.66

– exercised (ii) (2,823,948) $1.67 – –

Balance at end of financial period – – 2,823,948 $1.67

Exercisable at end of financial period – – 1,757,149 $1.11

(i) Options held at the beginning of the reporting period:
The following table summarises information about options held by employees as at 1 July 2002:

WEIGHTED AVERAGE
NUMBER OF OPTIONS GRANT DATE VESTING DATE EXPIRY DATE EXERCISE PRICE

1,757,149 30 June 1999 30 June 2002 30 June 2004 $1.11
344,799 16 May 2000 16 May 2003 16 May 2005 $2.47
722,000 30 June 2002 30 June 2005 30 June 2007 $2.66

(ii) Options exercised
The following table summarises information about options exercised by employees during the financial year ended 30 June 2003:

WEIGHTED PROCEEDS
AVERAGE FROM SHARES NUMBER

NUMBER OF EXERCISE ISSUED OF SHARES
OPTIONS GRANT DATE EXERCISE DATE EXPIRY DATE PRICE ($) ISSUED ISSUE DATE

1,014,316 30 June 1999 2 August 2002 30 June 2004 $1.11 1,128,570 1,014,316 2 August 2002
742,833 30 June 1999 11 October 2002 30 June 2004 $1.11 826,507 742,833 11 October 2002
344,799 16 May 2000 11 October 2002 16 May 2005 $2.47 852,488 344,799 11 October 2002
722,000 30 June 2002 11 October 2002 30 June 2007 $2.66 1,920,520 722,000 11 October 2002

During the financial year, all options existing prior to the listing were exercised in advance of exercise date and the Executive Performance Rights Plan was
established.
There were no options exercised by employees during the financial year ended 30 June 2002.

(B) EXECUTIVE PERFORMANCE RIGHTS
On 23 December 2002, a total of 785,962 performance rights were issued to employees of the consolidated entity with annual
vesting periods over three years. In line with the vesting periods, the performance rights are being amortised over three years at
their fair value on a straight line basis. The fair value of the rights issued have been determined at $1.32, using an appropriate
pricing model that takes into account the vesting and performance criteria of the performance rights. No performance rights were
eligible for exercise during the financial year ended 30 June 2003.
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DIRECTORS OF THE DIRECTORS OF THE
CONSOLIDATED ENTITY PARENT ENTITY

12 MONTHS TO 8 MONTHS TO 12 MONTHS TO 16 MONTHS TO
30 JUNE 2003 30 JUNE 2002 30 JUNE 2003 30 JUNE 2002

$ $ $ $

36 REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

Income paid or payable, or otherwise made available, 
to directors by entities in the consolidated entity and 
related parties in connection with the management of 
affairs of the parent entity or its controlled entities 1,826,324 1,347,589 1,826,324 1,347,589

NO. NO. NO. NO.

The number of directors of Worley Group Limited whose 
remuneration falls within the following bands is:

$20,000 – $29,999 1 – 1 –

$40,000 – $49,999 2 – 2 –

$50,000 – $59,999 1 – 1 –

$70,000 – $79,999 1 – 1 –

$90,000 – $99,999 3 – 3 –

$270,000 – $279,999 – 2 – 2

$280,000 – $289,999 – 1 – 1

$500,000 – $509,999 – 1 – 1

$580,000 – $589,999 1 – 1 –

$710,000 – $719,999 1 – 1 –
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EXECUTIVES OF THE EXECUTIVES OF THE
CONSOLIDATED ENTITY PARENT ENTITY

12 MONTHS TO 8 MONTHS TO 12 MONTHS TO 16 MONTHS TO
30 JUNE 2003 30 JUNE 2002 30 JUNE 2003 30 JUNE 2002

$ $ $ $

37 REMUNERATION OF EXECUTIVES

Remuneration received or due and receivable, from 
entities in the consolidated entity and related parties 
by Australian based executive officers (excluding directors) 
whose remuneration was at least $100,000:

Executive officers of other entities in the consolidated entity 1,901,218 898,617 – –

NO. NO. NO. NO.

The number of executives of the consolidated entity and 
the Company whose remuneration falls within the 
following bands:

$120,000 – $129,999 – 1 – –

$170,000 – $179,999 1 1 – –

$180,000 – $189,999 – 1 – –

$200,000 – $209,999 – 1 – –

$210,000 – $219,999 – 1 – –

$220,000 – $229,999 1 – – –

$310,000 – $319,999 1 – – –

$350,000 – $359,999 2 – – –

$470,000 – $479,999 1 – – –

CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY

12 MONTHS TO 8 MONTHS TO 12 MONTHS TO 16 MONTHS TO
30 JUNE 2003 30 JUNE 2002 30 JUNE 2003 30 JUNE 2002

$ $ $ $

38 REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS

Remuneration for audit or review of the financial reports 
of the parent entity or any entity in the consolidated entity:

Auditor of the parent entity 475,233 252,335 – –

Other auditors of controlled entities 31,233 18,836 – –

506,466 271,171 – –

Amounts received for other services:

Services provided in relation to the Initial Public Offer 605,903 – – –

Other assurance related services 85,165 99,239 – –

691,068 99,239 – –

1,197,534 370,410 – –

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2003 (continued)
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39 RELATED PARTIES

(A) DIRECTORS
The names of persons who were directors of Worley Group Limited at any time during the financial year were as follows:

John Schubert (appointed 11/10/2002)

Ron McNeilly (appointed 11/10/2002)

Grahame Campbell (appointed 11/10/2002)

Erich Fraunschiel (appointed 05/03/2003)

John Green (appointed 11/10/2002)

John Grill

David Housego (appointed 11/10/2002)

Peter Meurs (resigned 11/10/2002)

David Mofflin (resigned 11/10/2002)

Russell Staley (resigned 11/10/2002)

(B) LOANS TO DIRECTORS AND DIRECTOR RELATED ENTITIES
Loans to directors of entities in the consolidated entity and their director related entities at the end of the financial period are
as follows:

CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY

2003 2002 2003 2002
$ $ $ $

Unsecured loans 20,200 50,139 – –

Loan repayments received

Unsecured loan to D Mofflin 50,139 – – –

Unsecured loan to D Housego 89,800 – – –

139,939 – – –

Interest revenue on loans to directors of entities in the 
consolidated entity included in the determination of profit 
from ordinary activities before income tax 6,146 – – –

The unsecured loan outstanding at 30 June 2003 accrues interest at a rate of 6.5% per annum and is repayable on demand.

(C) TRANSACTIONS OF DIRECTORS AND DIRECTOR RELATED ENTITIES CONCERNING ORDINARY SHARES OF WORLEY GROUP LIMITED

PARENT ENTITY

2003 2002
NUMBER NUMBER

Aggregate number of shares acquired on exercise of options 1,036,544 363,745

Aggregate number of shares acquired under the Non-executive Director Share Plan 29,912 –

Aggregate number of performance rights acquired under the Executive Performance Rights Plan 157,858 –

Aggregate number of shares held 32,405,170 16,966,917

There have been no other transactions concerning equity instruments during the financial year with directors or their director
related entities.
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39 RELATED PARTIES (continued)

(D) WHOLLY OWNED GROUP TRANSACTIONS
The wholly owned group consists of Worley Group Limited and its wholly owned entities listed at note 27.

Aggregate amounts included in the determination of operating profit before income tax expense that resulted from transactions
with entities in the wholly owned group:

CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY

12 MONTHS TO 8 MONTHS TO 12 MONTHS TO 16 MONTHS TO
30 JUNE 2003 30 JUNE 2002 30 JUNE 2003 30 JUNE 2002

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Dividend revenue 27,553 2,000

(E) OTHER RELATED PARTIES
Aggregate amounts included in the determination of 
operating profit before income tax that resulted from 
transactions with each class of other related parties:

Dividend revenue

Associates – –

Controlled entities – – 27,553 2,000

Other revenue

Associates 2,618 6,184 – –

Aggregate amounts brought to account in relation 
to other transactions with each class of other 
related parties

Loans advanced to

Controlled entities – – 48,548 –

Associates 73 3,489 – –

Loan repayments from

Controlled entities – – 9,589 –

Associates 1,109 1,000 – –

Aggregate amounts receivable from, and payable to, 
each class of other related parties at balance date:

Current receivables

Controlled entities – – 28,959 –

Associates 11,318 5,780 – –

Current payables

Associates 2,057 2,385 – –

Related entities provide specific advisory services to controlled entities in the normal course of business. These transactions are
made on normal terms and conditions and at market rates.

(F) CONTROLLING ENTITIES
Worley Group Limited is the ultimate Australian parent company.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2003 (continued)
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40 SEGMENT INFORMATION

PRIMARY REPORTING – BUSINESS SEGMENTS

REFINING,
OIL INDUSTRIAL PETRO-

AND MINERALS AND INFRA- CHEMICALS
GAS AND METALS STRUCTURE & CHEMICALS OTHER ELIMINATIONS CONSOLIDATED

12 MONTHS TO 30 JUNE 2003 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Sales to external customers 253,045 66,850 27,384 19,221 680 – 367,180

Procurement services revenue 8,251 – – – – – 8,251

Inter-segment sales 1,253 – 2,148 – – (3,401) –

Total sales revenue 262,549 66,850 29,532 19,221 680 (3,401) 375,431

Share of net profits of 
associates 4,565 – 592 430 – – 5,587

Other revenue 823 – – – 1,489 – 2,312

Total segment revenue 267,937 66,850 30,124 19,651 2,169 (3,401) 383,330

Segment result 36,655 8,468 3,232 2,400 1,663 – 52,418

Amortisation expense (3,373)

Unallocated corporate 
expenses (16,651)

Profit from ordinary activities 
before income tax expense 32,394

Income tax expense (6,836)

Profit from ordinary activities 
after income tax expense 25,558

Segment assets 72,808 19,390 14,098 5,433 – – 111,729

Goodwill and trade name 61,705

Unallocated corporate assets 37,227

Consolidated total assets 210,661

Segment liabilities 41,124 9,227 6,187 1,704 – – 58,242

Unallocated corporate liabilities 33,757

Consolidated total liabilities 91,999

Investments in associates 
included in segment assets 8,723 – 2,731 259 – – 11,713

Acquisition of property, plant 
and equipment, intangible and 
other non-current assets 4,589 168 223 – – – 4,980

Depreciation and amortisation 
expense 3,913 410 220 109 1,471 – 6,123

Unallocated depreciation and 
amortisation expense 3,197

Total depreciation and 
amortisation expense 9,320

Non-cash expenses other than 
depreciation and amortisation 144 – – – – – 144
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40 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

PRIMARY REPORTING – BUSINESS SEGMENTS (continued)

REFINING,
OIL INDUSTRIAL PETRO-

AND MINERALS AND INFRA- CHEMICALS
GAS AND METALS STRUCTURE & CHEMICALS OTHER ELIMINATIONS CONSOLIDATED

8 MONTHS TO 30 JUNE 2002 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Sales to external customers 206,838 4,768 16,270 13,077 8,444 – 249,397

Inter-segment sales 14,657 4,221 1,785 447 5,667 (26,777) –

Total sales revenue 221,495 8,989 18,055 13,524 14,111 (26,777) 249,397

Share of net profit or (loss) of 
associates 1,629 – (227) – 4 – 1,406

Other revenue – – – – 1,362 – 1,362

Total segment revenue 223,124 8,989 17,828 13,524 15,477 (26,777) 252,165

Segment result 29,062 1,177 1,962 115 (483) – 31,833

Amortisation expense (2,578)

Unallocated corporate 
expenses (14,271)

Profit from ordinary activities 
before income tax expense 14,984

Income tax expense (5,269)

Profit from ordinary activities 
after income tax expense 9,715

Segment assets 59,680 7,843 8,378 1,213 3,179 – 80,293

Goodwill and trade name 62,950

Unallocated corporate assets 53,273

Consolidated total assets 196,516

Segment liabilities 42,287 7,421 3,941 1,206 2,016 – 56,871

Unallocated corporate liabilities 37,563

Consolidated total liabilities 94,434

Investments in associates 
included in segment assets 6,979 – 3,333 – – – 10,312

Acquisition of property, plant 
and equipment, intangible and 
other non-current assets 2,340 306 150 64 195 – 3,055

Depreciation and amortisation 
expense 1,172 135 90 1 587 – 1,985

Unallocated depreciation and 
amortisation expense 496

Total depreciation and 
amortisation expense 2,481

Non-cash expenses other than 
depreciation and amortisation 2,268 55 176 143 – – 2,642

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2003 (continued)
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SECONDARY REPORTING – GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS
AUSTRALIA AND ASIA AND

NEW ZEALAND MIDDLE EAST USA TOTAL
12 MONTHS TO 30 JUNE 2003 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Sales to external customers 278,736 61,888 26,556 367,180

Segment assets 181,209 23,684 5,768 210,661

AUSTRALIA AND ASIA AND
NEW ZEALAND MIDDLE EAST USA TOTAL

12 MONTHS TO 30 JUNE 2002 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Sales to external customers 227,640 12,554 9,203 249,397

Segment assets 169,731 21,976 4,809 196,516

The consolidated entity’s operating companies are organised and managed separately according to the nature of the services they
provide, with each segment serving different markets.

The primary markets are Oil and Gas, Minerals and Metals, Refining, Petrochemicals and Chemicals, and Industrial and
Infrastructure (including Power and Water).

Geographically, the consolidated entity operates in three predominant segments, Australia and New Zealand, Asia and the
Middle East, and USA. Outside of Australia, activities are predominantly in the Oil and Gas segment.

SEGMENT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Segment accounting policies are the same as the consolidated entity’s policies described in note 1. During the financial period,
there were no changes in segment accounting policies that had a material effect on the segment information.

Segment revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities are those that are directly attributable to a segment and the relevant portion
that can be allocated to the segment on a reasonable basis. Segment assets include all assets used by a segment and consist
primarily of receivables and plant and equipment.

Segment revenues, expenses and results include transactions between segments incurred in the ordinary course of business.
These transactions are priced on an arm’s length basis and are eliminated on consolidation.
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41 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(A) OFF-BALANCE SHEET DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS
The consolidated entity is exposed to exchange rate transaction risk on foreign currency sales and purchases. The most
significant exchange rate risk is US dollar receipts by Australian entities. When required, hedging is undertaken through
transactions entered into in the foreign exchange markets. Forward exchange contracts and put option contracts have been
used for hedging purposes.

At balance date, the details of outstanding contracts are:

SELL US DOLLARS BUY AUSTRALIAN DOLLARS AVERAGE EXCHANGE RATE

2003 2002 2003 2002
$’000 $’000

0 – 6 months 11,776 21,875 0.5526 0.5366

As these contracts are hedging anticipated future receipts and sales, any unrealised gains and losses on the contracts, together
with the cost of the contracts, are deferred and will be recognised in the measurement of the underlying transaction provided the
underlying transaction is still expected to occur as originally designated. Included in the amounts deferred are any gains and
losses on hedging contracts terminated prior to maturity where the related hedged transaction is still expected to occur as
designated.

The following gains and losses have been deferred at balance date:

2003 2002
$’000 $’000

Unrealised gains 1,843 1,148

Less: Unrealised losses – (3)

Net unrealised gains 1,843 1,145

(B) CREDIT RISK EXPOSURES
The credit risk on financial assets of the consolidated entity which have been recognised on the consolidated statement of
financial position is generally the carrying amount, net of any provisions for doubtful debts.

(C) INTEREST RATE RISK EXPOSURES
The consolidated entity’s exposure to interest rate risk and the effective weighted average interest rate by maturity periods is set
out in the following table.

WEIGHTED FIXED INTEREST MATURING IN:
AVERAGE FLOATING NON-
INTEREST INTEREST 1 YEAR OVER 1 YEAR MORE THAN INTEREST

RATE RATE OR LESS TO 5 YEARS 5 YEARS BEARING TOTAL
(%) $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and deposits 4.75 35,428 – – – – 35,428

Receivables – – – – 70,148 70,148

Other financial assets – – – – 120 120

Total financial assets 35,428 – – – 70,268 105,696

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Bank overdrafts and loans 8.50 2,605 419 – – – 3,024

Interest bearing liabilities 6.23 – 828 689 – – 1,517

Trade and other creditors – – – – 45,125 45,125

Total financial liabilities 2,605 1,247 689 – 45,125 49,666

Net financial assets 56,030

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2003 (continued)
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CONSOLIDATED

2003 2002
$’000 $’000

(D) RECONCILIATION OF NET FINANCIAL ASSETS TO NET ASSETS
Net financial assets as above 56,030 31,320

Non-financial assets and liabilities

Inventories 10,777 8,234

Property, plant and equipment 11,186 12,306

Other assets 84,845 83,982

Provisions (33,300) (16,519)

Other liabilities (10,876) (17,241)

Net assets per balance sheet 118,662 102,082

42 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Effective 1 July 2003, Worley Engineering Pty Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Worley Group Limited, acquired a 51%
interest in Jones & Jones Engineering Design Pty Limited. A total cash consideration of $1.6 million has been paid to acquire
this interest.

Effective 1 August 2003, Worley Engineering Pty Limited also acquired 50% of the issued share capital of Macdonald Engineering
Group Limited, a Canadian engineering company. The company has since been renamed MEG Worley Limited. A total cash
consideration of $3.3 million has been paid to acquire this interest.
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In accordance with a resolution of the directors of Worley Group Limited, we state that:

(1) In the opinion of the directors:

(a) the financial statements and notes of the Company and of the consolidated entity are in accordance with the
Corporations Act 2001, including:

(i) giving a true and fair view of the Company’s and consolidated entity’s financial position as at 30 June 2003 and of
their performance for the year ended that date; and

(ii) complying with Accounting Standards and Corporations Regulations 2001; and

(b) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due
and payable.

(2) In the opinion of the directors, as at the date of this declaration, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the members
of the Closed Group identified in note 27 will be able to meet any obligations or liabilities to which they are or may become
subject, by virtue of the Deed of Cross Guarantee.

On behalf of the Board

John Schubert John Grill
Chairman Director

Sydney, 3 September 2003

DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION
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SCOPE

THE FINANCIAL REPORT AND DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY
The financial report comprises the statements of financial position, statements of financial performance, statements of cash flows, accompanying
notes to the financial statements, and the directors’ declaration for Worley Group Limited (the Company) and the consolidated entity, for the financial
year ended 30 June 2003. The consolidated entity comprises both the Company and the entities it controlled during that year.

The directors of the Company are responsible for preparing a financial report that gives a true and fair view of the financial position and performance
of the Company and the consolidated entity, and that complies with Accounting Standards in Australia, in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001.
This includes responsibility for the maintenance of adequate accounting records and internal controls that are designed to prevent and detect fraud
and error, and for the accounting policies and accounting estimates inherent in the financial report.

AUDIT APPROACH
We conducted an independent audit of the financial report in order to express an opinion on it to the members of the Company. Our audit was
conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards in order to provide reasonable assurance as to whether the financial report is free of
material misstatement. The nature of an audit is influenced by factors such as the use of professional judgement, selective testing, the inherent
limitations of internal control, and the availability of persuasive rather than conclusive evidence. Therefore, an audit cannot guarantee that all material
misstatements have been detected.

We performed procedures to assess whether in all material respects the financial report presents fairly, in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001,
including compliance with Accounting Standards in Australia, and other mandatory financial reporting requirements in Australia, a view which is
consistent with our understanding of the Company’s and the consolidated entity’s financial position, and of their performance as represented by the
results of their operations and cash flows.

We formed our audit opinion on the basis of these procedures, which included:
• examining, on a test basis, information to provide evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial report, and
• assessing the appropriateness of the accounting policies and disclosures used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by

the directors.
While we considered the effectiveness of management’s internal controls over financial reporting when determining the nature and extent of our
procedures, our audit was not designed to provide assurance on internal controls.

We performed procedures to assess whether the substance of business transactions was accurately reflected in the financial report. These and our
other procedures did not include consideration or judgement of the appropriateness or reasonableness of the business plans or strategies adopted by
the directors and management of the Company.

INDEPENDENCE

We are independent of the Company, and have met the independence requirements of Australian professional ethical pronouncements and the
Corporations Act 2001. In addition to our audit of the financial report, we were engaged to undertake the services disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements. The provision of these services has not impaired our independence.

AUDIT OPINION

In our opinion, the financial report of Worley Group Limited is in accordance with:
(a) the Corporations Act 2001, including:

(i) giving a true and fair view of the financial position of Worley Group Limited and the consolidated entity at 30 June 2003 and of their
performance for the year ended on that date; and

(ii) complying with Accounting Standards in Australia and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and
(b) other mandatory financial reporting requirements in Australia.

Ernst & Young Michael Elliott
Partner

Sydney
3 September 2003

INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT TO MEMBERS OF WORLEY GROUP LIMITED
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TOP 20 HOLDERS OF FULLY PAID ORDINARY SHARES AS AT 12 SEPTEMBER 2003

NAME UNITS % I/C RANK

WILACI PTY LTD 25,712,370 17.22 1
LUJETA PTY LTD 15,822,840 10.59 2
J P MORGAN NOMINEES AUSTRALIA LIMITED 10,013,349 6.70 3
NATIONAL NOMINEES LIMITED 7,971,223 5.34 4
BEHANA PTY LTD 7,532,960 5.04 5
SKIPTAN PTY LTD* 5,829,809 3.90 6
SKIPTAN PTY LTD 5,458,522 3.65 7
FRENCH CONSULTING PTY LTD 4,682,175 3.13 8
WESTPAC CUSTODIAN NOMINEES LIMITED 3,340,068 2.24 9
SUNCORP CUSTODIAN SERVICES PTY LIMITED 3,326,300 2.23 10
QUEENSLAND INVESTMENT CORPORATION 2,843,336 1.90 11
CITICORP NOMINEES PTY LIMITED 2,650,715 1.77 12
JOHN GRILL 2,488,584 1.67 13
TAYLOR SQUARE DESIGNS PTY LTD 1,938,197 1.30 14
ACEPORT PTY LTD 1,901,160 1.27 15
GIO GENERAL LTD 1,650,037 1.10 16
IAN HORGAN & PATRICIA HORGAN 1,559,506 1.04 17
INMAC ENGINEERING PTY LIMITED 1,458,890 0.98 18
PERMANENT TRUSTEE AUSTRALIA LIMITED 1,423,414 0.95 19
COMMONWEALTH CUSTODIAL SERVICES LIMITED 1,419,298 0.95 20

TOTAL 109,022,753 72.97

Total number of current holders for all named classes is 1,773.
* As Trustee for The Cumorah Trust.

RANGE OF FULLY PAID ORDINARY SHARES AS AT 12 SEPTEMBER 2003

1 1001 5001 10001 100001
TO TO TO TO TO

1000 5000 10000 100000 (MAX) TOTAL

HOLDERS

Issuer 281 314 95 66 49 805
Chess 104 496 196 131 41 968
Total 385 810 291 197 90 1,773

SHARES

Issuer 215,992 944,892 826,527 2,104,186 84,931,553 89,023,150
Chess 85,682 1,689,819 1,682,579 3,356,348 53,519,133 60,333,561
Total 301,674 2,634,711 2,509,106 5,460,534 138,450,686 149,356,711
Total Holders 1,773
Total Shares 149,356,711

The number of shareholders holding less than marketable parcel of shares is one (shares 100).

VOTING RIGHTS

All ordinary shares carry one vote per share without restriction.

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
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ACN 096 090 158

DIRECTORS

John Schubert (Chairman)
Ron McNeilly (Deputy Chairman)
Grahame Campbell
Erich Fraunschiel
John Green
John Grill
David Housego

COMPANY SECRETARY

Sharon Sills

REGISTERED OFFICE

Level 7
116 Miller Street
North Sydney NSW 2060

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young

BANKERS

HSBC Bank Australia Limited

LAWYERS

Freehills
Baker & McKenzie

SHARE REGISTRY

Computershare Investor Services Pty Limited
Level 3, 60 Carrington Street
Sydney NSW 2000
Australia
Ph: 1300 855 080 

CORPORATE INFORMATION
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REGISTERED OFFICE AND
CORPORATE HEAD OFFICE:

Worley
Level 7,116 Miller Street
North Sydney NSW 2060
PO Box 1812, North Sydney
NSW 2059 Australia
Ph: 61 2 8923 6866

OTHER OFFICES:

ABU DHABI
Al Bu Qubai Tower (Office Floor)
Zayed the 1st Street
PO Box 44169
Abu Dhabi, UAE
Ph: 971 2 632 4144

ADELAIDE
25 Conyngham Street
Glenside SA 5065
Australia
Ph: 61 8 8130 6100

AL KHOBAR
4th Floor, Adil Khashoggi Building
Dhahran Road, Al Khobar 31952
PO Box 31699, Al Khobar 31952
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia
Ph: 966 3 894 8700

BALCATTA
Unit 3, 20 MacAdam Place
Balcatta WA 6022
Australia
Ph: 61 8 9240 5084

BANGKOK
333 Lao Peng Nguan 1 Building
20th Floor Unit B
Soi Chaypuang, Vibhavadi-Rangsit Road
Ladyao, Jatujak, Bangkok 10900
Thailand
Ph: 66 2 689 3000

BRISBANE
Level 3, 80 Albert Street
Brisbane QLD 4000
PO Box 81, Albert Street
Brisbane QLD 4002
Australia
Ph: 61 7 3221 7444

BUNBURY
28-30 Wellington Street
Bunbury WA 6230
PO Box 720, Bunbury WA 6230
Australia
Ph: 61 8 9781 2400

CALGARY
1001 - 1st Street S.E
Calgary, Alberta T2G 5G3
Canada
Ph: 1 403 508 5300

DOHA
1st Floor
Business Building ‘B’ Ring Road
Near Jaidah Flyover
Doha, Qatar
PO Box 18130, Doha Qatar
Ph: 974 43 53 110

DUBAI
10F23 Lob 10, Jebel Ali, Dubai UAE
PO Box 16805, Jebel Ali, Dubai UAE
Courier to: Villa 81, Street 18B, Jumeira 3
Dubai, UAE
Ph: 971 4 394 6519

GEELONG
Level 5, Focus Five
23-31 Gheringhap Street
Geelong VIC 3220
Australia
Ph: 61 3 5223 1511

GLADSTONE
Level 3, 190 Goondoon Street
Gladstone QLD 4680
PO Box 5004, Gladstone QLD 4680
Australia
Ph: 61 7 4972 8299

HOUSTON
13105 Northwest Freeway
Suite 200
Houston Texas 77040 USA
Ph: 1 713 690 1131

JAKARTA
Menara Batavia, Floor 12A
Jl. K.H. Mas Mansyur Kav. 126
Jakarta 10220 Indonesia
Ph: 62 21 574 6218

KALGOORLIE
Suite 2, 35 Brookman Street
Kalgoorlie WA 6430
Australia
Ph: 61 8 9026 2626

KARRATHA
Burrup Peninsula, Karratha WA 6714
PO Box 517, Karratha WA 6714
Australia
Ph: 61 8 9158 8475

KERTEH
No 10A, Tingkat 1, Bangunan PMINT
Bandar Baru Kerteh
24300 Kerteh, Terengganu
Malaysia
Ph: 60 9 826 1044

KUALA BELAIT
F204-F212 Komplek Harapan
Jalan Setia Di-Raja, KA3131 Kuala Belait
Negara Brunei Darussalam
PO Box 1692, KA1131, Kuala Belait
Negara Brunei Darussalam
Ph: 673 334 1410

KUALA LUMPUR
13th Floor, 
Empire Tower City Square Centre
182 Jalan Tun Razak
50400 Kuala Lumpur
Malaysia
Ph: 60 3 2163 0499

KWINANA
Mason Road (BP Refinery)
Kwinana WA 6167
PO Box 2131, Rockingham WA 6168
Australia
Ph: 61 8 9419 9500

LONG ISLAND POINT
Long Island Point Fractionation Plant
(ESSO)
Cemetery Road, Hastings
Long Island Point VIC 3915
PO Box 1239, Sale VIC 3850
Australia
Ph: 61 3 5979 4312

LONGFORD
Longford Gas Plant (ESSO)
Garretts Road
Longford VIC 3851
Australia
Ph: 61 3 5149 6257

MACKAY
Level 1, 45 Victoria Street
Mackay QLD 4740
PO Box 1038, Mackay QLD 4740
Australia
Ph: 61 7 4953 2366

MELBOURNE
Level 17, 300 Flinders Street
Melbourne VIC 3000
Australia
Ph: 61 3 9205 0500

MIRI
Lot 1209, 1st Floor Lorong 9
Jalan Krokop
98000 Miri Sarawak
Malaysia
Ph: 60 85 414 616

MUSCAT
Building No 75A, Way No 2311
Dohat Al Adab Street
Al Khuwair, Muscat
Sultanate of Oman
Post Box 1038, Jibroo 112, 
Sultanate of Oman
Ph: 968 600 009

NEW PLYMOUTH
Level 5, Glenport House
25 Gill Street
New Plymouth, New Zealand
PO Box 705, New Plymouth
New Zealand
Ph: 64 6 759 6300

NEWCASTLE
21 Merewether Street
Newcastle NSW 2300
PO Box 814, Newcastle NSW 2300
Australia
Ph: 61 2 4927 0666

PERTH
Level 6, QV1 Building
250 St George’s Terrace
Perth WA 6000
PO Box 7637, Cloister Square WA 6850
Australia
Ph: 61 8 9278 8111

PORT OF SPAIN
4B Alexandra Street
Port of Spain
Trinidad and Tobago
Ph: 1 868 628 3733

SALE
1 Platt Court
Wurruk VIC 3850
PO Box 1239, Sale VIC 3850
Australia
Ph: 61 3 5143 1355

SINGAPORE
491-B River Valley Road
#09-01 Valley Point
Singapore 248373
Ph: 65 6735 8444

SINGLETON
Rose Point Centre
Unit 1, 17-19 Ryan Avenue
Singleton NSW 2330
Australia
Ph: 61 2 6571 2600

SPOTSWOOD
208 Hall Street
Spotswood VIC 3015
Australia
Ph: 61 3 9393 4200

TEHRAN
Unit 2, No 9, 5th Street
Gandhi Ave
Tehran, Iran 1517641185
PO Box 15175-189, Tehran, Iran
1517641185
Ph: 98 21 888 8912

TOWNSVILLE
3 Ramsay Street
Garbutt, Townsville QLD 4810
PO Box 5423, M.C, Townsville QLD 4810
Australia
Ph: 61 7 4729 5501

WHANGAREI
Marsden Point Road
Northland, New Zealand
PO Box 21, Ruakaka, New Zealand
Ph: 64 9 432 8311

YANBU
Building 12216, Camp 12, RCJ&Y Camp
Yanbu Al Sinaiyah 51888
PO Box 30481, Yanbu Al Sinaiyah 51888
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia
Ph: 966 4 321 0048

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICES:

BEIJING
Suite 12, 14/F, Tower A,
Pacific Century Place
2A Gong Ti Bei Lu, Chaoyang District
Beijing 100027
People’s Republic of China
Ph: 86 10 6539 1091

NEW DELHI
Trikausch House
M-26 Commercial Complex Greater
Kailash Part 11 (Market)
New Delhi 110048 India
Ph: 91 11 2641 7675

WEBSITE
www.worley.com.au

DIRECTORY
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